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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 29th  May, 2009 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 15th May,
2009.

LAKSHMAN  GOONEWARDENA,
Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
January 01, 2009.

AA
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Appointments, &c.  by the President

No. 141  of  2009

NATIONAL   CADET   CORPS

Promotions approved by His Excellency the President

(a) To be Temporary Lieutenant Colonel with effect from 01st
September, 2006:

O/3133 Major WMMAB WELAGEDARA;

(b) To be Temporary Lieutenant Colonel with effect from 01st
January, 2008:

O/3044 Major WM DANAPALA,
O/3072 Major HAYS HETTIARACHCHI (L),
O/3081 Major DP WIJESIRI,

No. 142  of  2009

SRI  LANKA  ARMY   –  REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Ranks approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officers in the rank of
Captain with effect from the dates shown against their names are
approved:

(a) O/62959 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) RATNAYAKE

MUDIYANSELAGE HEMANTHA PRADEEP KUMARA RATNAYAKE,
GR–27th April, 2001;

(b) O/63416 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) RAMANAYAKE

APPUHAMILAGE THILINA SURANGA RAMANAYAKA, RSP VIR–9th
November, 2002;

(c) O/64129 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) DELKANDURA

ARACHCHIGE PUNSIRI GUNARATHNA, GR3rd–July, 2003;

(d) O/64053 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) NIHAL PRASANNA

TIKIRIBANDARA, SLSR–22nd July, 2003;

(e) O/64049 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) AWWAHANDI

NANDIMA DE SILVA SLLI–22nd July, 2003;

(f) O/63836 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) PRANK

KANKANAMGE SANATH KUMARATISSA ABEYWICKRAMA, SLCMP
–28th October, 2003;

(g) O/64480 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) WADUGE SUMITH

DANANJAYA FERNANDO, SLAOC–4th January, 2004;

O/3134 Major GMM PERERA,
O/3142 Major NAM PIYARATNE,
O/3157 Major SMG SAMARAKOON,
O/3130 Major D de SILVA,
O/3139 Major AU DAYANANDA,
O/3150 Major PAM GUNASEKARA.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,

05-442

Other Appointments, & C.
(h) O/64890 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) DON BODHI

SUMEDHA SENAVIRATHNE, VIR–5th April, 2004;

(i) O/65352 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) HITIHAMY
MUDIYANSELAGE JAYANTHA WIPULA BANDARA HERATH, SLA –
16th April, 2004;

(j) O/65353 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) JAYAPATMA HERATH
MUDIYANSELAGE MAHINDA HERATH, VIR–16th April, 2004;

(k) O/64329 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) PERAMUNA
PATHIRAGE SUDARMAN DUSHMANTHA JANENDRA PATHIRAGE, SLA
–01st June, 2004;

(l) O/63736 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) WEERASURIYA
ARACHCHIGE NALIN THUSARA MILTON, SLLI–01st June, 2004;

(m) O/63898 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) SUDDHAMY
GAMARALAGE NIMAL JAYARATHNE, SLAGSC–01st June, 2004;

(n) O/63937 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) RAJAKARUNA
DISANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE RESAN TISSAPRIYA RAJAKARUNA,
SLCMP–01st June, 2004;

(o) O/64732 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) PILIMATALAWWE
WIJERATHNE NARENDRASINHE PANDITHA WASALA BANDARALAGE
SURANGA UDAYA BANDARA PILIMATALAWWE, SLAC–04th
January, 2005;

(p) O/64733 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) SOLANGA
ARACHCHIGE LALITH INDIKA JAYASENA, SLSC–04th January,
2005;

(q) O/64766 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) EKANAYAKA
MUDIYANSELAGE MAHINDA SAMAN KUMARA EKANAYAKE, VIR –
04th January, 2005;
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(r) O/64787 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) BALASURIYA

LEKAMLAGE INDIKA SRIYAN BALASURIYA, SLLI–11th April,
2005;

(s) O/64151 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) PALISKARA

MUDIYANSELAGE SHANTHA DESHAPRIYA PALISKARA, RSP MI–
01st June, 2005;

(t) O/64196 Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) SAMANTHA

SAMARASEKARA WEERASOORIYA, SLASC–01st June, 2006.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
12th March, 2009.

05443/1

No. 144  of  2009

SRI  LANKA  ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officers in the rank of
Captain with effect from the dates stated against their names is
approved:

(a) Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) UDUWARA URULEDENI

K O R A L A G E  D H A R M A S E N A  U D U W A R A , MIR –(O/65094)–

No. 143  of  2009

SRI  LANKA  ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of
Captain with effect from 01st June, 2004 is approved:

Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) (Quartermaster) DUWAGE

RATHNAPALA FERNANDO, SLLI–(O/62766).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
18th February, 2009.

05-443/5

06th January, 2006;

(b) Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) MANIMEL WADU USHAN

SATHYAJITH, MIR–(O/65565)–06th February, 2007;

(c) Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) RANDUNUGE MALAKA NUWAN

RANDUNUGE, SLAC–(O/65739)–19th January, 2008.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
21st January, 2009.

05-443/14

No. 145  of  2009

SRI  LANKA  ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of
Captain with effect from 28th December, 2006 is approved:

Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) WANIGASURIYAGE DON INDIKA

DANANJANA PERERA, SLSR–(O/65482).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
05th January, 2009.

05-443/15

No. 146  of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of
Captain with effect from 12th July, 2007 is approved:
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Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) KOLAMUNNA GALGANAGE

THARANGA LAKMAL THELIS, SLLI–(O/65239)

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
01st December, 2008.

05-443/16

No. 147  of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officers in the rank of
Captain with effect from the dates stated against their names is
approved:

(a) Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) GONIYA MALIMAGE SHANTHA

GEETHADEVA APONZO, VIR–(O/65420)–23rd August, 2007;

(b) Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) RATHNADIVAKARA

BANDARANAYAKE UDAWALAWWE SAMPATH WICKRAMANAYAKE, SLLI–
(O/65864)–05th February, 2008.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
12th February, 2009.

05-443/8

No. 148 of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR   FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of
Captain with effect from 19th January, 2008 is approved:

Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) JAYAWEERA PATABENDIGE

LAKSHMAN ASOKA KUMARA JAYAWEERA, SLLI–(O/65713).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
26th January, 2009.

05-443/13

No. 149  of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR   FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the
Commander of the Army

CONFIRMATION of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of
Captain with effect from 07th July, 2008 is approved:

Lieutenant (Temporary Captain) AMPE DASANAYAKA

MUDIYANSELAGE DAMMIKA UDAYA KUMARA, GR–(O/65968).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
09th February, 2009.

05-443/10

No. 150  of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR  FORCE

Posthumous Promotions approved by the Commander of
the Army

THE Posthumous promotions of the under mentioned officers to the
rank of Captain is approved with effect from the dates shown against
their names:

(a) Lieutenant KURUWITA ARACHCHIGE ASIRI PRIYANTHA IMBULANA,
GR–(O/66255)–27th February, 2009;
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(b) Lieutenant SANDUN CHANAKA UKWATHTHA LIYANAGE, SLSR–
(O/66181)–28th February, 2009.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
04th March, 2009.

05-443/2

No. 151  of  2009

SRI    LANKA     ARMY - REGULAR    FORCE

Promotions/Posthumous Promotions approved by the
Commander of the Army

THE Promotions/Posthumous promotions of the under mentioned
officers with effect from the dates mentioned against their names are
approved:

(a) Lieutenant UDAHA GEDARA AMILA SAMPATH SAMARANAYAKE,
GW–(O/65746);

(1) Promotion to the rank of Captain with effect from 01st
March, 2009, posthumously:

(b) Second Lieutenant HEWAWASAM GOLUWA MARAKKALAGE KASUN

ISHARA MEGAWARNA, GW–(O/66514);
(1) Promotion to the rank of Lieutenant with effect from 14th

January, 2009;

(2) Promotion to the rank of Captain with effect from 01st
March, 2009, posthumously.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
04th March, 2009.

05-443/3

No. 152  of  2009

SRI  LANKA  ARMY   –  REGULAR  FORCE

Posthumous Promotions approved by the Commander of
the Army

THE posthumous promotion of the under mentioned officers to the
rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from the dates shown
against their names:

(a) Second Lieutenant KAHADAMAHATTE RALLAGE ROHANA KUMARA

KAHADAMAHATTE, SLLI–(O/66560)–16th November, 2008;

(b) Second Lieutenant KANDE MANGALA RAJADASA, SLSR–
(O/66562)–02nd September, 2008;

(c) Second Lieutenant BATTANA MUDIYANSELAGE RANDENIYA, GW–
(O/66616)–09th January, 2009;

(d) Second Lieutenant RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRASENA

RATHNAYAKE, SLSR–(O/66634)–22nd January, 2009;

(e) Second Lieutenant WIJESINGHE ARACHCHILAGE ANURA KUMARA,
GW–(O/66651)–27th October, 2008;

(f) Second Lieutenant RAJAPAKSHE DEWAYALAGE RUWAN

UDAYAKUMARA, SLLI–(O/66679)–18th November, 2008;

(g) Second Lieutenant SEMBAGASSERI KUNAPPUGE GAMINI

HARISCHANDRA, GW–(O/66712)–18th January, 2009;

(h) Second Lieutenant IMBULGODAGE SUMITH NISHANTHA IMBULGODA,
VIR–(O/66748)–24th January, 2009;

(i) Second Lieutenant HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE PUNCHIBANDA,
VIR–(O/66749)–22nd November, 2008;

(j) Second Lieutenant RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE PRIYANTHA

SAMARAWEERA, SLLI–(O/66758)–25th June, 2008;

(k) Second Lieutenant AGAMPODI RUWAN THUSHARA MENDIS,
SLSR–(O/66774)–21st September, 2008.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
31st January, 2009.

05443/12
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No. 153  of  2009

SRI    LANKA    ARMY - REGULAR    FORCE

Promotions/Posthumous Promotions approved by the
Commander of the Army

THE Promotions/Posthumous promotions of the under mentioned
officers with effect from the dates mentioned against their names are
approved:

(a) Second Lieutenant VISHAN PRABHATH MADUSANKA KURUVITA,
GR-(O/66512):

(1) Promotion to the Rank of Lieutenant w.e.f. 14th January,
2009,

(2) Promotion to the Rank of Captain w.e.f. 31st January,
2009, posthumously;

(b) Second Lieutenant PITIHUMA KAPURALLAGE ASANKA KUMARA

JAYATHILAKE, VIR–(O/66496):
(1) Promotion to the Rank of Lieutenant w.e.f. 14th January,

2009,

(2) Promotion to the Rank of Captain w.e.f. 05th February,
2009, posthumously.

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
16th February, 2009.

05-443/6

No. 154  of  2009

SRI   LANKA   ARMY - REGULAR   FORCE

Posthumous Promotion approved by the Commander of the
Army

THE posthumous promotion of the under mentioned officer to the
Rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 29th January, 2009:

Second Lieutenant PRASAD SANJEEWA WEERAWARDHANA, GW–
(O/66902).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
05th February, 2009.

05-443/11

No. 155  of  2009

SRI    LANKA     ARMY - REGULAR    FORCE

Posthumous Promotion approved by the Commander of the
Army

THE posthumous promotion of the under mentioned officer to the
Rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 04th February,
2009:

Second Lieutenant RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE UPALI

RATHNAYAKE, GR–(O/66832).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
06th February, 2009.

05-443/9

No. 156  of  2009

SRI    LANKA    ARMY - REGULAR    FORCE

Posthumous Promotion approved by the Commander of the
Army

THE posthumous promotion of the under mentioned officer to the
Rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 05th February,
2009:

Second Lieutenant WEDAMITHRA KAHAWEVITHANA, GW–
(O/66535).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
14th February, 2009.

05-443/7

No. 157  of  2009

SRI    LANKA    ARMY - REGULAR    FORCE

Posthumous Promotion approved by the Commander of the
Army

THE posthumous promotion of the under mentioned officer to the
Rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 16th February, 2009:
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Second Lieutenant ATHAPATTU RALLAGE NIROSHANA KUMARA

JAYASUNDARA, SLSR-(O/66479).

G. S. C. FONSEKA, RWP RSP VSV USP rcds psc,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Colombo,
20th February, 2009.

05-443/4

No. 158  of  2009

APPOINTMENTS  OF  SRI  LANKA   ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICE

1. Mr. S. PRANAVANADAN Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 04.07.2006 until
further orders.

2. Mr. M. PATRICK DIRANJAN Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 22.08.2006 until
further orders.

3. Miss. B. A. D. D. SIRIWARDANA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Secretary of the
Ministry of Public Administration and Home Affairs with
effect from 01.01.2007 until further orders.

4. Miss. R. M. S. P. AMARASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Secretary of the
Ministry of Public Administration and Home Affairs with
effect from 01.01.2007 until further orders.

5. Mrs. B. M. K. WADURASSA  Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 01.01.2007
until further orders.

6. Mrs. K. A. P. PERERA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 01.01.2007
until further orders.

7. Miss. R. N. N. L. KARUNARATHNA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry
of Public Administration and Home Affairs with effect from
01.01.2007 until further orders.

8. Miss. B. R. SAMARATHUNGA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 01.01.2007
to 15.12.2008.

9. Mr. R. P. M. P. WIJERATHNE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 01.01.2007
until further orders.

10. Mrs. M. P. PERERA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of Agrarian
Development with effect from 02.01.2007 until further orders.

11. Mr. K. G. LANEROLLE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 04.01.2007 until
further orders.

12. Mrs. NANDA EDIRISOORIYA  Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 05.03.2007 until
further orders.

13. Mr. A. M. W. A. AMUNUGAMA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
14.03.2007 until further orders.

14. Mr. K. W. KIRINDAGE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 21.08.2007 until
further orders.

15. Mrs. C. WANNIARACHCHI Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretaryof the Divisional
Secretariat, Welivitiya-Divitura with effect from 26.08.2007
until further orders.

16. Mrs. H. M. SOMA SENEVIRATHNA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretaryof
the Divisional Secretariat, Kotawehera with effect from
26.08.2007 until further orders.

17. Mr. K. A. C. P. PUSHPAKUMARA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
10.09.2007 until further orders.

18. Mr. D. M. G. B. DISSANAYAKE Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
18.09.2007 until further orders.

19. Mr. H. M. M. U. B. HERATH  Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 01.10.2007 until
further orders.

20. Mr. H. S. S. LUSENA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Commisioner of the Department of Agrarian
Development with effect from 02.11.2007 to 31.12.2008.
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21. Mr. H. M. N. DINIPRIYA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Elections with effect from 11.12.2007 until further orders.

22. Mr. CHANDANA KUMARASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
17.12.2007 until further orders.

23. Mr. N. M. D. C. SAMARASEKARA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
29.02.2008 until further orders.

24. Mrs. N. W. G. D. SUJEEWANI Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Internal
Administration with effect from 24.03.2008 to 01.02.2009.

25. Mr. D. L. K. PRIYAWANSHA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 05.05.2008 until
further orders.

26. Mr. I. K. G. MUTHUBANDA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 04.06.2008 until
further orders.

27. Miss. O. K. WIJEWICKRAMA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Public Service
Commission with effect from 09.06.2008 until further orders.

28. Miss. J. A. D. R. JAYASURIYA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Prime Minister’s
Office with effect from 19.06.2008 to 30.01.2009.

29. Mrs. R. P. R. RANASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Community
Development and Social Inequity Eradication with effect
from 01.07.2008 until further orders.

30. Mr. J. JAYASUNDARA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Public Service
Commission with effect from 21.07.2008 until further orders.

31. Mr. K. G. WIJESIRI Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Controller of the Department of Immigration
and Emigration with effect from 13.08.2008 until further
orders.

32. Mrs. U. W. I. P. WIJESUNDARA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Chief Secretary Office
Central Province with effect from 03.09.2008 until further
orders.

33. Mrs. B. A. P. SUMANAWATHIE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretary of the Divisional
Secretariat, Negombo with effect from 05.09.2008 until
further orders.

34. Mrs. H. A. PIYALATHA PERERA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Secretary of the
Mediation Boards Commission with effect from 08.09.2008
until further orders.

35. Mr. D. B. KALUARACHCHI Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Hon. Leader of the
Opposition in Parliament with effect from 08.09.2008 until
further orders.

36. Mr. T. G. JAYASENA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Director of the Department of Animal
Production and Health with effect from 08.09.2008 until
further orders.

37. Mr. T. M. K. B. PREMATILAKA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Public
Service Commission with effect from 08.09.2008 until further
orders.

38. Mr. A. D. SOMADASA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Labour
Relations and Manpower with effect from 08.09.2008 until
further orders.

39. Mr. K. M. L. B. KAKULANDARA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the
Department of Agrarian Development with effect from
08.09.2008 until further orders.

40. Mrs. H. M. LEELAWATHIE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of
Constitutional Affairs and Integration with effect from
08.09.2008 until further orders.

41. Mr. L. G. SIRIMAL Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 08.09.2008
until further orders.

42. Mrs. M. D. S. JAYASUMANA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 08.09.2008
until further orders.

43. Miss S. D. ARANDARA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 08.09.2008
until further orders.

44. Mr. N. K. WICKRAMAPALA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretary of the Divisional
Secretariat, Weligapola with effect from 08.09.2008 until
further orders.

45. Mrs. H. A. I. KATEEPEARACHCHI Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretary
of the Divisional Secretariat, Thimbirigasyaya with effect
from 08.09.2008 until further orders.
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46. Miss J. M. S. JAYASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Divisional Secretary of the Divisional
Secretariat, Rambukkana with effect from 08.09.2008 until
further orders.

47. Mrs. L. P. SOMAWATHIE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Plantation
Industries with effect from 08.09.2008 until further orders.

48. Mrs. H. A. F. H. V. TISSERA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Department of Public
Finance with effect from 08.09.2008 until further orders.

49. Mr. S. W. SIRIWARDANA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Department of
Agriculture with effect from 09.09.2008 until further orders.

50. Mr. R. D. SANDARATNA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Agrarian Development with effect from 09.09.2008 to
15.12.2008.

51. Mr. H. JAYATHILAKA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 09.09.2008
until further orders.

52. Mr. K. M. P. P. PERERA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Department of Pensions
with effect from 09.09.2008 until further orders.

53. Mrs. K. PATHIRAJA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative Service
as an Assistant Secretary of the Uva Provincial Ministry of
Health, Indigenous Medicine, Social Welfare, Probation and
Childrencare with effect from 09.09.2008 until further orders.

54. Mrs. D. M. V. DISSANAYAKE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Department of Social
Services of Uva Province with effect from 09.09.2008 until
further orders.

55. Mrs. C. S. WEERASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Controller of the Department of
Immigration and Emigration with effect from 10.09.2008 until
further orders.

56. Mr. H. K. V. PERERA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as a Deputy Commissioner of the Municipal Council
Matale with effect from 10.09.2008 until further orders.

57. Mr. D. A. H. PIYATHILAKA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Controller of the Department of
Immigration and Emigration with effect from 11.09.2008 until
further orders.

58. Mr. G. P. N. M. ABESEKARA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Controller of the Department of
Immigration and Emigration with effect from 12.09.2008 until
further orders.

59. Mrs. W. M. M. JAYASURIYA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Labour with effect from 15.09.2008 until further orders.

60. Mrs. L. P. R. SEETHA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Commissioner of the Department of
Labour with effect from 15.09.2008 until further orders.

61. Mr. J. D. AMARATHUNGA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Labour
Ralations and Manpower with effect from 18.09.2008 until
further orders.

62. Mr. D. M. P. JAYAWARDHANA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Controller of the Department of
Immigration and Emigration with effect from 17.11.2008 until
further orders.

63. Mr. N. M. N. D. BANDARA Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Governor’s Secretariat
of the Central Province with effect from 25.11.2008 until
further orders.

64. Mr. K. T. M. S. SERASINGHE Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Director of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 25.11.2008
until further orders.

65. Mrs. B. A. S. UDAYANGANI Class III Sri Lanka Administrative
Service as an Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Administration and Home Affairs with effect from 04.12.2008
until further orders.

66. Mr. D. S. C. T. R. D. RATNAYAKA Class III Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as an Assistant Controller of the
Department of Immigration and Emigration with effect from
08.12.2008 until further orders.

D. DISSANAYAKE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Public Administration and
Home Affairs.

Ministry of Public Administration and
Home Affairs,

Independence Square,
Colombo 07.

05-302

No. 159  of  2009

I, Veadivel Puththirasigamoney, Acting Minister of Justice and Law
Reforms, by virtue of powers vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the
Judicature Act, No. 02 of 1978 do hereby appoint;

1. Mr. SEBASTIAN LAWRENCE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;
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2. Mr. DORESAMI MOORTHI to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

3. Mr. KRISHNAN SUGUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

4. Mrs. WELU MUTTUMONY to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

5. Mr. CHINTHAKA GUNARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

6. Mr. SELWARAJU SARAWANAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

7. Mr. NAGALINGAM PRAKASH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

8. Mr. THYAGARAJA GANESHARAJA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

9. Mr. SAPPANIYA PILLAI GANESHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

10. Mr. PATHIRANNEHELAGE TIKIRI BANDA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

11. Mr. WICKRAMA MUDIYANSELAGE PIYADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

12. Mr. HERBET SUNIL DISSANAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

13. Mr. KODITHUWAKKU ARACHCHILAGE NANDASIRI KODITHUWAKKU

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

14. Mr. PETHTHARAKUMBURE MUDIYANSELAGE SUSANTHA

SOORIYAARACHCHI to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Ratnapura;

15. Mr. HELAUDA PATABANDIGE DINGIRIMAHATMAYA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial  Zone of Ratnapura;

16. Mr. KARIYAKARANA PATABANDIGE ABEYWARDHANA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

17. Rev. THUTHTHIRIPITIYE GNANARAMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

18. Mr. BADAL MUHANDIRAMALAGE SOMAPALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

19. Mrs. WANITHA THYAGAKUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

20. Mr. DASANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE WILFRED DASANAYAKA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

21. Mr. AHAMAD SULTHAN MOHAMADU MANSOOR to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

22. Mr. HENRY ATHER MADANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

23. Mr. MOHAMED SHARAZ SALIH to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

24. Mr. SETHUMUTHTHU SAYANDAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

25. Mr. PUSSELLAGE MICHEL DEVIAN SILVA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

26. Mr. MATALE ALLEPOLAGE SUMANADASA JAYASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

27. Mr. DEWARAJA WAIKUNDAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

28. Mr. YAMAN SAPUGE DAYANANDA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

29. Mr. WELHENA KANKANAMGE UPALI PREMALAL to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

30. Mr. YAKALLE ARACHCHIGE PREMARATHNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

31. Mr. ARIYADASA GALAPPATHTHIGE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

32. Mr. WOLTER DEWANARAYANA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Matara;

33. Mr. GALAGAMAGE DON PETER to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Matara;

34. Mr. NIHAL KARUNANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Matara;

35. Mr. VITHANAGE CHANDRAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

36. Mr. ATHTHILIGODA VIDANA GAMAGE SIRISENA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

37. Mrs. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE PADMA MALINI GUNASINGHE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

38. Mr. RAMBANDAGE SIRISENA RATHNAMALALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

39. Mrs. WELAGEDARA SHANIKA ROSHINI WELAGEDARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;

40. Mr. HERATH BANDAGE WIMALASENA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

41. Mr. SENANAYAKALAGE DON RATHNASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;
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42. Mr. MOHIDEEN BAWA ABUTHEIB to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

43. Mr. PERIYASAMY SUTHAKAR to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kandy;

44. Mr. JENEBERT PANIMAYA MATHEASE POOPALA RAYER to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

45. Mr. BAMUNU ARACHCHIGE SUJITH GANGANATHA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

46. Mr. MUKAYYA WASUDEWAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

47. Mr. DORESAMY PILLAI SELLADORE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

48. Mr. KANDAYYA SELWARATHNAM to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

49. Mr. AMBAGAMUWA WATTE WIMALSIRIL ABEYSINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

50. Mr. RAJAKOON HARIHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

51. Mrs. U. I. MUNASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

52. Mr. UMASHANTHAN BALENDRANATHAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

53. Mrs. UDAWATTAGE DONA WINITHA PADMINI IMBULPITIYA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

54. Mr. PERUMAL MARIMUTHTHU NANDAKUMAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

55. Rev. Ven. MAVUNNEWELA SOBITHA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

56. Mr. THENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE APPUHAMY to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

57. Mr. WIJEKOON MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRARATHNA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

58. Mr. KISAWALANGU MUDIYANSELAGE SAMATHAPALA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

59. Mr. ATTANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE HEENBANDA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

60. Mr. WAHALAWANTHI MUDIYANSELAGE JAYASEKARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

61. Mr. PRABATH CHINTHANA DEWASURENDRA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

62. Mr. PERUMAL PILLEI SAI BALASUBRAMANIUM to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

63. Mr. RICHERD HENRY CHARLES to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

64. Mr. TIRON PRISHAN KUMARA AMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

65. Mrs. HEENATIGALA BADALGE WINITHA MALINI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

66. Mrs. THARANI RAJENDRA SARMA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

67. Mr. ISMA LEBBE MUHAMMADU ROOPAI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

68. Mr. NADANAPADAN JEGADEESAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

69. Mr. ABDUL RAHUMAN MOHAMAD ABDUL KADER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

70. Mr. THANGAWELU JEYAKUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

71. Mr. GOPAL KUMARAPILLAI RAJENDIRAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

72. Mr. DEEGODA GAMAGEI SARATH JINADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

73. Mr. DHANUSHKODY MATHAVAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

74. Mr. MAHAGEDARA MUTHUBANDARA WEERAKOON to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

75. Mr. PUBBARE MUDIYANSELAGE KARUNARATHNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

76. Mr. KARIYAWASAM SINGAPPULI THANTHIRIGE YASAPALA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

77. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE HEENBANDARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

78. Mr. KONGAHA LANDE GEDARA WIJAYARATHNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

79. Mr. THANUJA NIMINI DISANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

80. Mr. ABU BAYDA MOHOMAD ALIKHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

81. Mr. SENADHIPATHI MUDIYANSELAGE KAPURUHAMIGE

HEENBANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Puttlam;
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82. Mrs. KUSUM MALA PRIYANI MALPANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

83. Mrs. NIMAL GANAPATHI RAJ WASANTHA ROHINI DEVI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

84. Mrs. THAHIR NOORUL HIDHAYA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

85. Mr. DHARMASENA SENDANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

86. Mrs. GAMMINPILA APPUHAMILAGE DONA YASASEELI HEMALATHA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

87. Mr. HAMDUN MARIKKAR NAWFAL to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

88. Mr. ADAYKKALAMUTHTHU SEBASTIAN NERU to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

89. Mr. ANIGIPURA ASHOKA SEPALA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

90. Mr. KUMARASAMY SURESH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

91. Mr. SITHAMPARAM MAHARAJA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

92. Mr. JESTIN PIERIS to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

93. Mr. RAJARATHNAM MAYURAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

94. Mr. HEEN BANDAGE THILAKARATHNA BANDA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

95. Mr. DISSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE GUNARATHNA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

96. Mrs. PADMA YOGESWARY DANIYEL to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

97. Mr. THARMALINGAM GANESH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

98. Mr. ILANDARA DEWAGE JAYAWEERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

99. Mr. DODANGODA ARACHCHIGE DILIP KINGSLEY SRI DODANGODA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

100. Mr. APPUHAMY MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRASEKARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

101. Mr. PIYASENA VITHANA ARACHCHIGE PRADEEP RAJAKARUNA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

102. Mr. KAPUGEDARA DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KARUNARATHNE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

103. Mr. ATHTHANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KITHSIRI BANDARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

104. Mr. ABEYSINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE RAMBANDARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

105. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE MUTHU BANDARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

106. Mr. RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE BALAWARDANE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

107. Mr. DISANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KAPURUBANDA DISANAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

108. Mr. PELAWATTAHETTIGE GHANATHILAKE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

109. Mr. PAYAGALAGE DON HERISON PUSHPA KUMARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

110. Rev. THEBUWANA PEMINDA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

111. Mr. SENDANAYAKAGE SAMARAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

112. Mr. BOTHUNGA ARACHCHIGE SUDATH CHANDRARAJ ABEYWARDANE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

113. Mr. WEERASINGHE ARACHCHIGE PRIYANTHA ALWIS to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

114. Mr. EDIRIMANNA ARACHCHIGE JOHN SINGHO to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

115. Mr. DISSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRIBANDAGE

SENEVIRATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Anuradhapura;

116. Mr. HORATHALGE SUNIL KARUNARATHNA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

117. Mrs. DASANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE BANDARAMENIKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

118. Mr. NAGARAJA SEBAMALEI to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

119. Mr. VIDANAGAMAGE SUGUNAPALA ABHAYAWICKRAMA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

120. Mr. WIJEKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SOMACHANDRA WIJEKOON to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

121. Mr. VIRANJAN DAIS SUMANASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;
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122. Mr. ULPANGE RASIKA SAMAN PERERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

123. Mr. NISHSHANKA ARACHCHILAGE CHULANI NISHSHANKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

124. Rev. HIYADALA JINAWANSA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

125. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE DISANAYAKE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

126. Mr. MADDUMAGE NANDANA KANAKARATHNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

127. Mr. DON BANET ATHAPATHTHU to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

128. Mr. GALLAGE DON MICKEL AMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

129. Mr. SATHIS RANJAN HIYARE GAMAGE  to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

130. Mr. KOLLURE APPUHAMILAGE DON HEMACHANDRA KOLLURE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

131. Mr. BATAGODA KANKANAMGE JAYANTHA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

132. Mr. DIGGAHA RANAWAKACHCHIGE SOMAPALA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

133. Mr. KUMARADASA PADMACHANDRA MUNASINGHE VITHARANA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

134. Mr. RANAWAKA ARACHCHIGE ANTONY ALWIS  to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

135. Mr. RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE JAYAWARDANE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

136. Mr. GAJANAYAKE MUDALIGE PIYADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

137. Mr. HENRY KANDAGE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

138. Mr. MOHOMAD YUSUF MOHOMAD MISRUL SIYAD to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

139. Mr. MOHOMAD FISHAL to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

140. Mr. GALGAMU PATHIRANNEHALAGE ROHITHA SRI HEMANTHA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

141. Mrs. UDAGEDARA MUDIYANSELAGE KANTHIMALA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

142. Mr. KARIYAPPERU MUDIYANSELAGE MUTHUBANDA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

143. Mr. LANSAKARA MUDIYANSELAGE KARUNARATHNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

144. Mr. DEWATHANTHRIGE MAHENDRA ARIYAWANSHA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

145. Mr. RANAWELLA ARACHCHIGE ARIYARATHNE RANAWELLA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

146. Mr. PELLANDENIYAGE SUNIL SHANTHA PELLANDENIYA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

147. Mr. ASSELLAGE ATHULA SENADEERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

148. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE SAMAN CHANDANA HERATH to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

149. Rev. BOYAGODA CHANDARATHANA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

150. Mrs. DASANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE BANDARAMENIKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

151. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE GAMINI NAYANA KEERTHI

KALUHENDIWALA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

152. Mr. APPUHAMIGE WIJESINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

153. Mr. BADAKURUGE DHARMASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

154. Mr. MOHAMAD IBRAHIM MOHAMAD UMER FAROOK to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

155. Mr. DHANAPALAGE AMARATHUNGA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

156. Mr. JAYAWARDANA MUDIYANSELAGE JAYASIRI BANDARA

JAYAWARDANE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

157. Rev. KOVILBENDAWEWE WIJITHA SOBHANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

158. Mr. MUSAGE OMARUDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

159. Mr. HERATHBANDARALAGE GUNARATHNA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

160. Mr. GAMLATH RAJAPAKSHAGE KAMAL GUNASINGHA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

161. Mr. THENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRARATHNA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;
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162. Mr. APPUHAMILAGE PIYATHISSA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

163. Mr. THITTAGALLA GAMAGE VICTOR DE SILVA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

164. Mr. AHAMADU LEBBEGE SULTHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

165. Mr. ORANDA DODAMWALA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

166. Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE BADRASEKARA RATHNAYAKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

167. Mr. MADUWE ARACHCHILAGE MADDUMA BANDA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

168. Mr. CHANDRADASA WIJESINGHA GUNARATHNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

169. Mr. NEKADAGE DON CHANDRASENA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

170. Mr. HEWAGE SOMADASA ERIYAGAMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

171. Mr. KEERAGALAGE SIRISOMA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

172. Mr. RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE NANDASENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

173. Mr. JAYASINGHA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRADASA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

174. Mrs. GARDIYAWASAM LOKU WELIGAMAGE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

175. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE DASANAYAKA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

176. Mr. WEIHENAGE JAYARATHNE JAYAWARDANE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

177. Rev. HARUMALGODA KASSAPA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

178. Mr. RANASINGHE PATHIRANAGE TISSA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

179. Mr. PERUMAL KRISHNAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

180. Mr. SELWARAJA RANJITH RAVI SANKAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

181. Mr. SELLAYYA SELWARAJA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

182. Mr. ARUMUGAM RENGASAMI to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

183. Mrs. DONA WICKRAMABAHU SENARATH WANSAWATHIE YAPA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

184. Mr. SELWARAJ SARAWANAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

185. Mr. KARUNAMUNI LAL RAJITH SILVA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

186. Mr. SAMARATHUNGA LIYANAGE DON NIHAL CHAMINDA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

187. Mr. ABDUL SUKOOR LAHIR to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Puttalam;

188. Mr. MUHAMMAD MANSUR JAMALKHAN MANSOOR to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

189. Mr. PERUMAL SINNA ALAGAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

190. Mr. ANTHONY IKNESHIUS FERNANDO to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Vavuniya;

191. Mr. MOHAMED THIYOOB MOHAMAD MANAAZ to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Puttalam;

192. Mr. NIMAL PATHIRANAGE KARUNARATHNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

193. Mr. MUHAMMADU ANWER MUHAMMADU ANAS to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Vavuniya;

194. Mr. SELWARAJA RAMESH RAVISHANKAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

195. Mr. SAMUWEL BERNARD RANJITH KUMAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

196. Mr. WEDAMUTHTHU SAWARINAYAGAM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Rathnapura;

197. Mr. KAHATHTHAGE AJITH BANDULA PERERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

198. Rev. SOMASUNDARAM WETTIWEL to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

199. Mrs. INDRA ARIYALATHA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Galle;

200. Mr. GAMPALA WADUGE SUJITH SASANTHA FONSEKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

201. Mr. SINNAIAH JEMES GHANASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;
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202. Mr. MOHOTTIGE PIYASENA WEERASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

203. Mr. LIYANA PATHIRANNEHELAGE JAYASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

204. Mr. RANASIN KODITHUWAKKU JANAKA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

205. Mr. NIMAL PADIPPERUMA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

206. Mr. AMARADASA MEGODAWICKRAMA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

207. Mrs. PATHMA LALINI IHALAVITHANA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

208. Mr. SIRIWARDANE HANDUNNETHTHHIGE ARIYARATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

209. Mr. PUNCHIHEWAGE PIYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

210. Mr. KORANELIS HEWA GANEGODA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

211. Mr. DAPANA DURAGE AKMON to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

212. Mr. MALLIKAGE WOLCY to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

213. Mr. NAMBADAWA VITHANAGE PREMADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

214. Mr. CYRIL EDMEND WIDISINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

As Justice of the Peace.

VEADIVEL PUTHTHIRASIGAMONEY,
Acting Minister of Justice

and Law Reforms.

At Ministry of Justice and Law reforms.
06th May, 2009.

05-414

Government Notifications
MATARA   THOTAMUNA   POSON   MAHA

PERAHARA

IT is hereby notified under section 10th of the regulations published
in the Sri Lankan Government Gazette No. 11959 issued on 20th
November, 1959 under pilgrimage (chapter 175) ordinance that the
Poson Maha Perahara conducted in the District of Matara of the
Southern Province, will be held on 07th of June, 2009.

THUSITHA P. WANIGASINGHE,
Divisional Secretary,

Matara.

At the Divisional Secretariat of Matara,
On 29th April, 2009.

05-316

L. D. B. 277/40.

THE  ANTIQUITIES ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 188)

Order under Section 18

BY VIRTUE of the powers vested in me by section 18 of the
Antiquities Ordinance (Chapter 188), I, Mahinda Yapa
Abeywardana, Minister of Cultural Affairs and National Heritage,
do hereby declare that item 14 of the Order made under section 18
of the aforesaid Ordinance and published in Gazette No. 1,486 of

February 23, 2007 shall be omitted from the list of monuments
declared as “protected monuments” therein.

Minister of Cultural Affairs,
and National Heritage.

Colombo,
16th April, 2009.

05-293

MEDIATION     BOARDS     COMMISSION

Notice Calling for Nominations for the Appointment of
Mediators

THE Mediation Boards Commission, by virtue of the powers vested
by Section 5 (1) of The Mediation Boards Act, No. 72 of 1988,
invites fresh nominations for the Chairman of Panel of Mediators and
Mediators of the following Panel of Mediation who will vacate post
in terms of Sections 6 to 11 in Schedule 1 of the Mediation Boards
Act:-

Administrative District Mediation Board Areas

Administrative District of (01) Kalpitiya
Puttalam

(02) Mahakumbukkadawala
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Administrative District of Galle (03) Neluwa

Administrative District of (04) Tissamaharamaya
Hambantota

(05) Weerakatiya (For
filling the Vacancy)

Administrative District of Matale (06) Laggala

Administrative District of (07) Ginigathhena
Nuwara Eliya

(08) Walapone

Administrative District of (09) Ehaliyagoda
Rathnapura

(10) Kalawana
(11) Elapatha (For filling

the Vancancy)

Administrative District of  Badulla (12) Welimada
  (13) Bandarawela

Administrative District of (14) Galenbindunuwewa
Anuradhapura

(15) Thirappone (For
filling the Vacancy)

Administrative District of (16) Thamankaduwa
Polonnaruwa

Administrative District of
Jaffna (17) Karaweddi

(18) Uduwil
(19) Thelippalei
(20) Sandilippai

02. The Mediation Boards Commission hereby gives notice
Calling upon (a) the Individuals, (b) the Bodies, Organizations and
Institutions of non political nature, and (c) the District Secretaries/
Divisional Secretaries specified hereinafter to submit names of
persons who are eligible for appointment as Mediators to the Panel
of Mediators for the said Mediation Board areas:

(a) The following Individuals are entitled to submit nominations
other than their own for appointment to the Panel of a
particular Mediation Board area:

(i) A Public Officer or a Provincial Public Officer serving as
the Head of a Department or as the Local Head of a
Department in an office located within the Administrative
District in which that particular Mediation Board area is
situated;

(ii) The Head of a Place or religious worship or of a school
situated in that particular Mediation Board area is
situated;

(iii) A retired Head of a Department or a retired Head of a
School residing in that particular Mediation Board area;

(iv) Chairman of Panel of Mediators;

(b) The following Bodies, Organizations and Institutions of
Non-political nature are entitled to submit nominations for
appointment to the Panel of any Mediation Board area:

(i) Anybody, Organizations or Institution which has been in
existence for at least five years and which is engaged in
carrying out or serving anyone or more of the under
mentioned objectives:–

(a) The promotion of educational, religious, moral or
spiritual, advancement of the community;

(b) The promotion of social welfare and the relief from
poverty;

(c) The promotion of Rural Community Development;
(d) The promotion of culture of sports;
(e) The promotion of projects, programmes and activities

intended to provide and supply basic needs of the
peoples such as health, food and shelter;

(c) The following District Secretaries/Divisional Secretaries are
entitled to submit nominations for appointment to the Panel
of a particular Mediation Board Area:

(i) The District Secretary of the Administrative District in
which that Mediation Board area is situated;

(ii) Persons who are entitled to be appointed to the Panel of
a particular mediation area and whose names may be so
submitted are–

(a) any person resident in Mediation Board are engaged
in any work in that area;

(b) any person resident or engaged in any work outside
that Mediation Board area, if the Commission so
decides in exceptional circumstances; and

(c) any Public Officer nominated by the District Secretary
of the Administrative District within which that
Mediation Board is situated. An Officer so nominated
is eligible for appintment to the Panel of Mediators of
every Mediation Board area within that Administrative
District;

(d) the present Chairman of Panels of Mediators/
Mediators who are completed three years in office and
are due to vacate post.

03. (a) Individual and Bodies, Organizations and Institutions
referred to Para (1) above may not submit nominations
of such persons as are specified in Paras 2 (a) and 2 (b)
above who are not Public Officers, They may, however,
nominate Provincial Public Officer. An individual is not
entitled to nominate himself or herself.

Administrative District Mediation Board Areas
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(b) District Secretary referred to in Para 2(a) above may
submit nominations of Public Officers of who not more
than five may be appointed by the Commission to the
relevant Panel of Mediators.

04. Form of Nominations:

(a) Individuals should submit nomination substantially in
Form (a) below;

(b) Bodies, Organizations and Institutions should submit
nominations substantially in Form (b) below; and

(c) District Secretaries, Divisional Secretaries should submit
nominations substantially in Form (c) below;

Each nominations should be in a separate form and should
without fail contain the recommendation of the nominator as
indicated in the next Para.

05. The recommendation of the nominator should not be a mere
recommendation without reasons. It should set out specific facts and
circumstances to enable the Commission to draw its own reference
to the suitability or otherwise of the person nominated for
appointment to the Panel of Mediators, such as, for instance, his or
her person or past occupation, the period of service or engagement
in such occupations, any position or trust or responsibility held by
him or her and the office, if any, held by him or her in any social
service/religious/charitable Organization, Society or Body.

06. An individual or a Body, Organization or Institution should
as far as possible, refrain from making more than three nominations
in respect of the same Mediation Board area. However, this limitation
will not apply to the present Chairman of the Panel of Mediators and
to the District Secretaries, and Divisional Secretaries.

07. All nominations should be forwarded to reach the Secretary,
Mediation Board Commissions (Ministry of Justice), No. 428/11,
2nd Floor, Weera Densil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, Battaramulla, on
or before 30th June, 2009.

08. The Commission will initially select such eligible persons as
are, in its view suitable to follow a preliminary training course in
Mediators skills and techniques.

A. K. D. D. D. ARANDARA,
Act. Secretary,

Mediation Boards Commission.

Office of the Mediation Boards Commission,
(Ministry of Justice),
No. 428/11, 2nd Floor,
Weera Densil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
29th April, 2009

FORM “A”

(To be filled up by individuals eligible to submit Nominations)

01. Mediation Board Area of : –––––––––.

02. Administrative District of : –––––––––.

03. Particulars of the Individual submitting Nominations :

(a) Your Name in Full : –––––––––.
(b) Your Residential Address : –––––––––.
(c) Your Capacity to submit the Nominations : –––––––––.

(i) Are you the Head of Department? Or the Local Head of a
Department/If so,
state the name of the Department : –––––––––.
The location of your office : –––––––––.
The post held by you : –––––––––.

(ii) Are you the Head of Place of Worship? Or the Local Head
of a Department?
If so,
State its Name : –––––––––.
Its Situation : –––––––––.
The post held by you : –––––––––.

(iii) Are you a Retired Head of Department or a Retired Head of
a School? If So,
State its Name : –––––––––.
The last post held by you : –––––––––.
In which Mediation Board area you reside : –––––––––.

04. Particulars of the Person who is being nominated by you

(a) His Name in Full : –––––––––.
(b) His Residential Address : –––––––––.
(c) Is he a resident within the above Mediation Board area?

Or outside the said Mediation Board area : –––––––––.
(d) Is he engaged in any work within the said Mediation Board

area?
Or outside the said area : –––––––––.

(e) Is he a Public Officer? If so, state the Office he holds : –––.
05. State your recommendation with reason therefore:––––––.

–––––––––,
Signature,

(Seal if any)

Date : –––––––––.

FORM “B”

(To be filled up by the Secretary of the Body Organization or
institution eligible to submit Nominations)

01. Mediation Board Area of:––––––––––.

02. Administrative District of:––––––––––.

03. Particulars of the Body, Organization or Institution submitting
   the Nominations: –––––––––.

(a) Its Name : –––––––––.
(b) Its Registered/Official address : –––––––––.
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(c) Date of its Registration or Establishment : –––––––––.
(d) Period for which it has been in existence : –––––––––.
(e) Objectives it is engaged in carrying out of serving : ––––––.

04. Particulars of the person who is being nominated :

(a) His full Name : –––––––––.
(b) His Residential Address : –––––––––.
(c) Is he a resident within the above Mediation Board area?

Or out side the said Mediation Board area? : –––––––––.
(d) Is he engaged in any work within the said Mediation Board

area? Or outside the said area? : –––––––––.
(e) Is he a Public Officer?

If so, State the office he holds : –––––––––.

05. Has the Body, Organization or Institution passed a Resolution
authorizing his Nominations? If so,
State the date of such Resolution : –––––––––.

06. State the recomendations of the Body, Organization or Institution
with reasons therefore:––––––––.

 ––––––––––––,
Signature of Secretary,

(Seal of Body, Organization
of Institution).

Date : –––––––––.

FORM “C”

(To be filled up by the District Secretary to submit
Nominations)

01. Mediation Board Area of : –––––––––.

02. Administrative District of : –––––––––.
03. Particulars of the District Secretary submitting the
   Nomination :

(a) Your Name in Full : –––––––––.
(b) Your Official Address : –––––––––.
(c) Administrative District of which you are the District

Secretary : –––––––––.

04. Particulars of the Officer who is being nominated :

(a) His full Name : –––––––––.
(b) Is he a Public Officer? If so, state office held by him : –––.
(c) His official address : –––––––––.

05. Your recommendation with reasons therefore : –––––––––.

–––––––––––,
Signature.

(Seal)

Date : –––––––––.

05-423

Revenue and Expenditure Returns

MINISTRY   OF  TRADE,  MARKETING  DEVELOPMENT

Co-operative and Consumer Services

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

Financial Statements for the year ended 31.12.2008

For the year ended 31st December Note 2008 2007
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’

Revenue from Students and Member Activities 2 269,471 221,635
Less: Direct Expenditure on Students and Member Activities 2 122,540 101,311
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Contribution before Employee Costs and Overheads 2 146,931 120,324
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Other Income
Other Operating Income 3 1,454 515
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Operating Income 148,385 120,839
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––



647I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'05'22
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 22.05.2009

Overhead Expenses
Employee Costs 4 84,715 82,831
Communication Expenses 6,894 6,846
Maintenance of Premises 5 16,844 11,437
Audit Fees 92 80
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 5,731 5,159
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 368 -
Financial Assistance to Students 6 1,184 519
Other Expenses 7 5,922 6,091
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

121,750 112,963
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Net Operating Income 26,635 7,876
Government Grant 300 300
Interest Income 35,597 24,291

Surplus Transferred to Accumulated Fund 62,532 32,467

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 8 51,921 46,624
Educational Material-IRQUE Project 9 10,614 7,770
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

62,535 54,394
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Current Assets
Inventories 10 9,737 9,959
Receivables 11 21,616 18,907
Deposits, Prepayments and Advances 5,150 3,610
Short-Term Investments 12 251,667 190,621
Cash in Hand 40 40
Balance at Bank 30,916 14,518
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

319,126 237,655
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total Assets 381,661 292,049
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Funds and Liabilities
Accumulated Fund and Reserves
Accumulated Fund 190,869 128,337
Capital Reserve 24,000 24,000
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

214,869 152,337
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Specific Internal Funds
Faculty of Taxation Fund 13 316 316
Faculty of Auditing Fund 14 305 266
Scholarship Fund-Needy Students 15 6,729 6,754
Merit Scholarship Fund 16 8,003 7,851
Prize Funds 17 1,491 1,480
Income Balance-Scholarships and Prize Funds 18 3,919 4,856
Publications Fund 19 198 172
Best Annual Report Competition Fund 20 450 450
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

21,411 22,145
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Grants
Treasury Grnat for Standards Setting 21 133 349

For the year ended 31st December Note 2008 2007
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’
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World Bank Grant-IRQUE Project 22 26,012 20,507
Tsunami Victims Relief Grant from Japan 23 918 918
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

27,063 21,774
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Non-Current Liabilities
Provision for Retiring Gratuity 24 19,079 20,046
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 25 23,986 28,142
Receipts in Advance 26 65,271 41,925
Bank Overdraft 9,982 5,680
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

99,239 75,747
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total Funds and Liabilities 381,661 292,049
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

VASANI MANODARA ARUNA ALWIS

Finance Director Secretary

NISHAN FERNANDO SUJEEWA MUDALIGE

President Vie-President

Specific
Accumulated Capital Internal Total

Fund Reserve Funds
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’

Balance as at 1st January, 2007 95,870 24,000 21,312 141,182
Increase in Specific Internal Funds - - 833 833
Surplus of Income Over
Expenditure for the year 32,467 - - 32,467
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December, 2007 128,337 24,000 22,145 174,482

Increase in Specific Internal Funds - - (734) (734)
Surplus of Income Over Expenditure for the year 62,532 - - 62,532
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December, 2008 190,869 24,000 21,411 236,280
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Capital Reserve represents funds reserved for upgrading of buildings.

For the year ended 31st December 2008 2007
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of Income Over Expenditure 62,532 32,467
Adjustment for :

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 9,618 8,087
Amortisation of Grant for Computers and Other Equipment (3,887) (2,929)
Amortisation of Educational Materials 3,151 1,605
Government Grant (300) (300)
Provision for Retiring Gratuity 3,276 3,132
Transfers from Other Grants Received (4,294) (3,869)
Interest Income (35,597) (24,291)
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 368 -

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Operating Surplus before Working Capital Changes 34,867 13,902

For the year ended 31st December Note 2008 2007
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’
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(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 222 (2,771)
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables (2,709) (4,368)
Decrease/(Increase) in Deposits and Prepayments (1,540) 199
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable (4,156) 12,705
(Decrease)/Increase in Receipts in Advance 23,346 13,931
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

50,030 33,598
Retiring Gratuity Paid (4,243) (2,369)
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 45,787 31,229
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (21,447) (20,346)
Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 168 -
Interest Received 35,597 24,291
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cash Inflow from Investing Activities 14,318 3,945

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Government and Other Grants Received 13,771 10,965
Net Receipts of Specific Internal Funds (734) 833
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 13,037 11,798
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 73,142 46,972
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1st January 199,499 152,527
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31st December (Note A) 272,641 199,499
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Note A - Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31st December
Short-Term Investments 251,667 190,621
Balances at Bank and Cash in Hand 30,956 14,558
Bank Overdraft (9,982) (5,680)
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

272,641 199,499
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Reporting Entity :

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Institute’) which is situated at No. 30A,
Malalasekera Mawatha, Colombo 7 was incorporated by Act, of Parliament, No. 23 of 1959.

1.2 Basis of Preparation :

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS) and are based on
historical costs and do not take into account changing money values, except where stated. Cost is based on the fair values of the
consideration given in exchange for assets. The accounting policies are consistent with those used in  the previous year. The
Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 30th March, 2009.

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency. Figures and phrases
relating to the previous year have been restated where necessary, to conform to the current year’s presentation.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with SLAS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the
result of which forms the basis of making the judgements, Actual results may differ from estimates.

For the year ended 31st December 2008 2007
Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’ Rs. 000’
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.3 Assets and the Bases of their Valuation :

1.3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Depreciation is charged to the Income Statement on
the written-down values at the following rates per annum in order to write-off the cost of such assets over their estimated
useful lives, except in the case of Buildings on Leasehold Land. Buildings on Leasehold Land have been depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful lives :

Generator 20%
Furniture and Equipment 10%
Air-Conditioning Equipment 20%
Audio-Visual Equipment 10%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Computers 20%
Canteen Equipment 10%

As per SLAS 18 (Revised) - Property, Plant and Equipment, depreciation has been provided from the date an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment is available to use.

1.3.2 Educational Material - IRQUE Project

Library books purchased under the IRQUE Project is capitalised and charged to the Income Statement over a period of
3 years.

Work-Based Learning Programme being a software purchased from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW) is charged to the Income Statement over a period of 4 years.

Multimedia English Learning Centre (MELC) software used to enhance the English communication knowledge of the
students, will be written-off over the period of 4 years.

Syllabus Development Cost represents the cost incurred to develop Business Communication I and II syllabuses and will
be written-off over a period of 3 years.

1.3.3 Inventories

Inventories held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowances for obsolete and
slow-moving items. Cost is arrived at on a weighted average basis.

Other inventory items are stated at the lower of cost and net replacement cost.

1.3.4 Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount, less any allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

1.3.5 Short-term Investments

Treasury Bills are valued at cost plus accrued interest. Other short-term investments are valued at the lower of cost or market
value.

1.3.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits at Bank. Bank overdraft is included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows.
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1.3.7 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared using the ‘indirect method’.

1.4 Accounting for Grants :

Grants that compensate the Institute for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in the Income Statement on a systematic
basis in the same period in which the expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate the Institute for the cost of an asset are
recognised in the Income Statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

1.5 Employee Benefits :

1.5.1 Provision for Retiring Gratuity

Provision has been made for the retiring gratuity payable from the initial year of service to all employees. However, under
the Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of continued service.

The liability is not externally funded nor is it actuarially valued.

1.5.2 Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to Provident and Trust Funds are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement as incurred.

1.6 Current Liabilities

1.6.1 Current Liabilities

Current liabilities are those which fall due for payment on demand or within one year from the Balance Sheet date.
Non-current liabilities will fall due for payment one year or more after the Balance Sheet date.

1.6.2 Taxation

The Institute is exempt from Income Tax under Section 7 (b) (ii) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

1.7 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The materiality of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments, wherever
necessary, have been made in the accounts.

1.8 Income and Expenditure

1.8.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to ICASL and that it can be reliably
measured :

(a) Enrolment fees from members and students are recognised as revenue on receipt. The subscription year runs 01st
January to 31st December. Only those membership fees and subscription payments that are attributable to the current
financial year are recognised as revenue. Fees and subscription payments that relate to future periods are shown in
the Balance Sheet as subscriptions and fees in advance under Current Liabilities;

(b) Fees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and members’ activities are recognised as revenue on
completion of such activity;

(c) Interest income is recognised on accrual basis;

(d) Revenue from grants is recognised when control of the contribution or right to receive the contribution is received;

(e) Sponsorship of member-related activities is recognised on receipt.
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1.8.2 Expenditure

(a) All expenditure incurred in the running of the Institute and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of efficiency
has been charged to revenue in arriving at the surplus for the year.

(b) All expenditure incurred in the acquisition, extension or improvement of assets of a permanent nature in order to carry
on or increase the earning capacity of the Institute has been treated as capital expenditure.

(c) Expenditure on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and members’ activities is recognised in the
Income Statement on completion of such activity.

2. Revenue and Expenditure of Students and Member Activities

2008 2007
Direct Direct Direct Direct
Income Expenses Contribution Income Expenses  Contribution
Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Examinations 91,392 31,283 60,109 75,152 23,855 51,297
Registration, Education,

Training and Library 90,952 41,152 49,800 66,872 29,764 37,108
IT Training and MELC 16,429 7,069 9,360 12,236 5,745 6,491
Members’ Activities 54,997 33,709 21,288 52,113 31,914 20,199
Business School 2,935 1,759 1,176 4,471 2,481 1,990
Taxation Faculty 4,649 2,163 2,486 3,017 1,395 1,622
CPE  Secretariat 729 261 468 1,874 1,226 648
Technical Research 7,388 5,144 2,244 5,900 4,931 969

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
269,471 122,540 146,931 221,635 101,311 120,324

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

2008 2007
Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

3. Other Operating Income

Profit on Sale of Diaries 27         (372)
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Publications 101 170
Hire of Auditorium and Lecture Halls 269 260
Miscellaneous Income 1,057 457

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
1,454 515

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

4. Employee Costs

Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF/ETF 8,454 7,785
Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Retiring Gratuity 3,276 3,132
Salaries and Wages 68,555 67,177
Staff Development and Staff Welfare 2,204 2,055
Salaries for Project Staff 2,226 2,682

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
84,715 82,831

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

No. of Employees as at year end 116 110

5. Maintenance of Premises
Electricity and Generator Running Expenses 6,849 5,322
Maintenance 9,995 6,115

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
16,844 11,437

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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6. Financial Assistance to Tsunami-Affected and Other Students
Scolarships and Other Relevant Expenses 1,184 374
Assistance to Tsunami-Affected/Needy Students - 145–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

1,184 519
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

7. Other Expenses
Motor Vehicle Running Expenses 480 502
Bank Charges and Debit Tax 887 561
Professional Fees 662 1,042
Legal Expenses 1,528 1,192
General Expenses 1,411 1,071
Subscription to Employers’ Federation of Ceylon 230 161
Development of Strategic Plan - 1,562
ICASL 50th Anniversary Expenses 724 -

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
5,922 6,091

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost Accumulated Depreciation Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount

Description Balance Additions Disposals Blance Balance Charge Dep. On Balance as at as at
as at as at as at as at

01.01.08 31.12.08 01.01.08 for the Disposals 31.12.08 31.12.08 31.12.07
year

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Buildings on Leasehold
Land 14,744 - - 14,744 14,715 29 - 14,744 - 29

Generator 4,185 1,743 - 5,928 1,765 710 - 2,475 3,453 2,420
Furniture 20,793 4,077 190 24,680 8,500 1,379 151 9,728 14,952 12,293
Air-Conditioners 6,603 356 449 6,510 3,571 624 431 3,764 2,746 3,032
Audio Equipment 1,815 1,030 - 2,845 749 230 - 979 1,866 1,066
Motor Vehicles 906 71 - 977 757 30 - 787 190 149
Computers 41,630 4,491 4,041 42,080 14,695 5,745 3,566 16,874 25,206 26,940
Canteen Equipment 130 - - 130 81 5 - 86 44 49
Branch Capital Expenses 646 3,684 - 4,330 - 866 - 866 3,464 646–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

91,452 15,452 4,680 102,224 44,833 9,618 4,148 50,303 51,921 46,624–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

8.1 Leasehold Land

The buildings are situated on 2 blocks of land obtained on lease from the Government of Sri Lanka on 99-year lease ending
on 31st December, 2060 and a 30 year lease ending on 28th February, 2030, respectively.

8.2 Depreciation

Rs. ’000
Depreciation 9,618
Amortisation of Capital Grant (3,887)
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

5,731
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

8.3 Branch Capital Expenditure
Branch Capital Expenditure represents the expenses incurred to upgrade Kandy, Kurunegala and Matara Branches. These
expenses will be written-off over the lease period of the buildings (5 years).

9. Educational Material - IRQUE Project

Balance as at Additions Amortisation Balance as at 2007
01.01.08 31.12.08
Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Library Books 4,839 5,.995 2,.239 8,595 4,839

2008 2007
Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000
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Work-Based Learning Training Programme 458 - 229 229 458
Syllabus Development Cost 770 - 257 513 770
MELC - Software 1,703 - 426 1,277 1,703
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

7,770 5,995 3,151 10,614 7,770
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

The Library Books purchased under the IRQUE Project are written -off within 3 years from the year of purchase. Work-Based
Learning Programme is a software purchased from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) to enhance the
knowledge of the students and is written-off over a period of 4 years.

Syllabus Development Costs represent the cost incurred to develop Business Communication I and II Syllabuses and
written-off over a period of 3 years.

Multimedia English Learning Centre (MELC) software used to enhance the English communication knowledge of the students,
and written-off over a period of 4 years.

2008 2007
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

10. Inventories
Self-Study Courses 6,319 5,319
Other 3,418 4,640––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

9,737 9,959
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

11. Receivables
Loans and Advnaces to Staff 17,808 16,505
Others 3,808 2,402––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

21,616 18,907
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

12. Short-Term Investments
Fixed Deposits 5,862 2,750
Treasury Bills 237,305 185,871
Call Deposits 8,500 2,000––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

251,667 190,621
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

13. Tax Faculty Fund
Balance as at 31st December 316 316
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

316 316
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

14. Audit Faculty Fund
Balance as at 1st January 266 241
Interest for the year 39 25
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

305 266
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

15. Scholarship Funds - Needy Students
Balance as at Receipts/ Balance as at

01.01.08 Transfers 31.12.08
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Scholarship Scheme-L. A. Weerasinghe 6,253 3 6,256
Scheme of ICASL Members - UK 362 (7) 355
Dalton De S. Wijeratne Memorial Scheme 139 (21) 118
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

6,754 (25) 6,729
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Balance as at Additions Amortisation Balance as at 2007
01.01.08 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 31.12.08 Rs. ‘000
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000
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16. Merit Scholarship Funds
Balance as at Receipts/ Balance as at

01.01.08 Transfers 31.12.08
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

General Fund 6,028 15 6,043
Specific

Pelwatte Sugar Industries Ltd. Fund 80 - 80
Prof. Y. A. D. S. Samaratunga Memorial Fund 100 - 100
Ernst and Young Scholarship Fund 1,588 137 1,725
Miss Inoka Gunaratne Memorial Fund 55 - 55

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
7,851 152 8,003

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

17. Prize Funds
Balance as at Donation Received Balance as at

01.01.08 during the year 31.12.08
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

President’s Fund (ICASL) (1992) 25 - 25
B. R. De Silva Memorial Fund (1992) 25 - 25
Satchithananda Memorial Fund (1993) 16 - 16
Kreston MNS Fund (1993) 29 - 29
N. A. L. Cabraal Fund (1994) 25 - 25
Reyaz Mihular Fund (1996) 25 - 25
D. R. Settinayake Memorial Fund (1999) 58 - 58
A. D. E. de S. Wijeyeratne Memorial Fund (1999) 43 - 43
M. A. Abeynaike Fund (1999) 25 - 25
KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton and Co. Fund (1999) 113 - 113
Ernst and Young Fund (1999) 225 - 225
SJMS Associates Fund (1999) 41 - 41
Sunil Piyawardena and Co. Fund (1999) 55 - 55
Jayasinghe and Co. Fund (2000) 30 - 30
Lal Nanayakkara and Co. Fund (2000) 75 - 75
G. C. B. Wijeyesinghe Fund (2000) 50 - 50
Nihal Hettiarachchi Fund (2000) 51 - 51
Jayaweera and Co. Fund (2000) 25 - 25
Brito Mutunayagam Memorial Fund (2003) 129 - 129
Prof. N. Kodagoda Memorial Prize Fund (2005) 155 - 155
Pricewaterhouse Coopers Fund (2006) 150 - 150
K. G. H. De Silva Prize Fund (2006) 110 11 121
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

1,480 11 1,491
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

18. Income Balance - Scholarships and Prize Funds
Balance as at Interest/Income (Awards) Balance as at

01.01.08 Transfers during 31.12.08
for the year the year

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Scholarship Fund - L. A. Weerasinghe 2,403 1,116 (2,426) 1,093
Merit Scholarship - General Fund 1,502 1,091 (761) 1,832
Specific

Pelwatte Sugar Industries Ltd. Fund 169 37 - 206
Prof. Y. A. D. S. Samaratunga Memorial Fund 161 39 - 200
Ernst and Young Scholarship Fund 191 245 (431) 5
Miss Inoka Gunaratne Memorial Fund 107 24 - 131

Prize Fund 323 264 (135) 452
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

4,856 2,816 3,753 3,919
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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19. Publications Fund
2008 2007

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Balance as at 1st January 172 156
Add : Interest for the year 26 16
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December 198 172
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

20. Best Annual Report Competition Fund
Balance as at Contribution Transfers Balance as at Balance as at
01.01.2008 2008 31.12.08 31.12.07

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Deshabandu  Albert Page  (1992) 100 350 350 100 100
Late Mr. Cyril Gardiner (1993) 150 - - 150 150
Hayleys Ltd. (1994) 200 - - 200 200––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

450 350 350 450 450
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

21. Treasury Grant for Standards Setting
2008 2007

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Balance as at 1st January 349 566
Funds Received 2,500 2,500
Balance as at 31st December 2,849 3,066
Less: Amortisation of Capital Grant (216) (217)
Funds Utilised for Standards Setting (2,500) (2,500)––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December 133 349
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

22. World Bank Grnat - IRQUE Project
Balance Additions Amortisation 2008 2007

as at 01.01.08 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Grant for Library Books 2,015 3,974 1,039 4,950 2,015
Computers 16,560 2,526 3,581 15,505 16,560
Work-Based Learning Software 229 - 114 115 229
MELC-Software 1,.703 511 426 1,788 1,703
Other Equipment - 3,960 306 3,654 -
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

20,507 10,971 5,466 26,012 20,507
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

23. Tsunami Victims Relief Grant from Japan
2008 2007

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December 918 918
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

2008 2007
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

(Restated)
24. Provision for Retiring Gratuity

Balance as at 1st January 20,046 19,283
Provision for the year 3,276 3,132
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

23,322 22,415
Less: Payments during the year 4,243 2,369
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

19,079 20,046
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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25. Accounts Payable
Accrued Charges 4,098 11,671
Staff Payable 13,154 10,809
Payable on Self-Study Courses and Stationery 5,185 3,892
University of Southern Queensland (37) 215
Miscellaneous Payable 1,586 1,555
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

23,986 28,142
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

26. Receipts in Advance
Members’ Fees 3,053 1,940
Subscriptions for Registrations, Lectures and Exam Fees 61,646 39,279
Others 572 706
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

65,271 41,925
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

27. Capital and Other Commitments
The Institute was awarded a Quality Enhancement Grant of Rs. 100.3 Mn. by the Ministry of Education under an IDA-funded World
Bank Project for Improving Relevance and Quality of Undergraduate Education (IRQUE). This represents 50% of total IRQUE
Project cost of Rs. 200.6 Mn. to improve student-related activities of the Institute over a five-year period. As at 31st December,
2008, the Institute had incurred Rs. 65.2 Mn. and received Quality Enhancement Fund (QEF) amounting to Rs. 43.1 Mn.

The commitment of the Institute towards the project cost is as follows:
Committed Expenses for the year 2009 - Rs. 19 Mn.

Capital Expenditure contracted for which no provision is made in the Financial Statements as at 31st December, 2008 amounts to
Rs. 4.8 Mn.

28. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities that require disclosure in the Financial Statements.

29. Related Parry Disclosures

Related party transactions taken place during the year under review is as follows:

Mr. W. N. I. C. Fernando - President

Payment for UITF Cases Rs. 4,400

Educational Activities Rs. 45,000

Mr. D. T. S. H. Mudalige - Vice-President

Payment for UITF Cases Rs. 695

Educationa Activities Rs. 47,500

Mr. S. Rajapakse - Member of Council

Payment for UITF Cases Rs. 4,400

Annual Report Marking Rs. 7,500

2008 2007
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

(Restated)
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Mr. T. Dharmarajah - Member of Council
Lecture Fees Rs. 10,000
Educational Activities Rs. 81,512

Mr. Lasantha Wickremasinghe - Member of Council
Annual Report Marking Rs. 7,500

30. Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
There are no material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that require adjustment or disclosure in the Financial Statements.

Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2008
2008 2007

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
50 Shares - Hill School Co. Ltd. 500 500
Balance at National Savings Bank 487,960 465,504
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

488,460 466,004
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Liabilities
F. B. Lander Prize Fund
Capital 13,333 13,333

Income Account
Balance as at 1st January 466,004 - 430,027 -
Add : Interest for the year 9,123 475,127 22,644 452,671
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

488,460 466,004
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2008

2008 2007
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Balance at National Savings Bank 154,753 147,633

154,753 147,633

Liabilities
Cyril E. Begbie Memorial Prize Fund
Capital 10,000 10,000

Income Account
Balance as at 1st January 92,633 90,454
Add : Interest for the year 7,120 7,179
Less: Prizes Paid - 5,000 92,633
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Creditors - ICASL 45,000 144,753 45,000
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

154,753 147,633
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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TO  THE  COUNCIL  OF  THE  INSTITUTE  OF  CHARTERED  ACCOUNTANTS  OF  SRI  LANKA

I have examined the accompanying Balance Sheet of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Balance Sheet of F. B. Lander
Prize Fund and Cyril E. Begbie Memorial Prize Fund as at 31st December, 2008, and the related Statements of Income, Changes in Funds
and the Cash Flow for the year then ended.

Respective Responsibilities of Management and Auditor

The Management of the Institute is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Basis of Opinion

My resposibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri
Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fiancial
statements are free from material misstatements.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my
audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, so far as appears from my examination, the Institute maintained proper accounting records for the year ended December
31, 2008 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Institute’s state of affairs, the F. B. Lander Prize Fund and Cyril E.
Begbie Memorial Prize Fund as at December 31, 2008 and their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards.

A. T. P. EDIRISINGHE,
Charted Accountant.

Colombo 02,
30th March, 2009.

05-374

UNIVERSITY OF PERADENIYA

10.1.3 Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2007

Description Note Sch. Page General Fund Eastern and Total Total
No. No. Univsersity Ext. Jaffna Unit

Exam. For Displ. 2007 2006
Unit Student
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 01 H,H1 14-16 3,26,62,91,889.72 24,97,229.23 2.00 3,26,87,89,120.95 3,24,26,69,186.80
Work in Progress 02 A1 17 46,11,49,075.45 46,11,49,075.45 36,81,93,713.92
Restricted fund investment 1 03 I 18-22 7,99,94,427.67 7,99,94,427.67 7,58,95,886.07
Restricted fund investment 2 04 J 23-33 20,59,85,144.97 20,59,85,144.97 20,20,62,964.59

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
4,01,34,20,537.81 24,97,229.23 2.00 4,01,59,17,769.04 3,88,88,21,751.38
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Description Note Sch. Page General Fund Eastern and Total Total
No. No. Univsersity Ext. Jaffna Unit

Exam. For Displ. 2007 2006
Unit Student

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current Assets :
Stocks 05 K 34 47,723,556.76 1,297,876.88 49,021,433.64 39,343,736.58
Goods in Transit - 80010240 06 K-1 35-38 25,478,791.82 25,478,791.82 19,107,944.62
Receivable University Staff Defaulted
agreements and violation of

Bonds- 12016200 07 K-2 131-135 80,484,800.30 80,484,800.30 87,721,413.92
Monies due from other University

and Institutions 08 Q 39 1,780,776.40 63,618,760.68 3,819,554.49 15,252,082.89 14,227,498.68
Sundry Debtors - Miscellaneous 09 L 40 30,352,733.68 30,352,733.68 18,988,794.29
Supplies and Services Advance 10 P 41 5,165,778.50 5,165,778.50 3,020,242.12

11 N 42 3,410.00 3,410.00 1,135.00
Loans and Advances to Students
Loans and Advances to staff 12 M 43 96,707,177.10 2,250,238.00 28,141.90 98,985,557.00 94,254,014.45
Miscellaneous Advance 13 O 44-45 29,656,605.41 286,102.20 29,942,707.61 30,544,082.59
Pre Payments 14 R 46 13,049.90 13,049.90 37,776.90
Cash at Bank - Balance in Cash Book 15 S 47-49 194,953,974.44 6,949,852.92 7,606.35 201,911,433.71 130,332,398.00

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
512,320,654.31 74,402,830.68 3,855,302.74 536,611,779.05 437,579,037.15

Total Assets 4,525,741,192.12 76,900,059.91 3,855,304.74 4,552,529,548.09 4,326,400,788.53

Liabilities :
Current Liabilities

Deposits 16 U 50 6,458,639.68 657,664.66 7,116,304.34 5,996,648.41
Monies due to other Universities and 17 W 51 28,337,452.13 903,982.84 903,982.84 903,982.84

Institutions
Sundry Creditors 18 T 52 44,757,466.31 170,889.72 45,990.52 19,344,790.00 18,277,430.22
Lease Creditor - Short-term T 52 5,456,016.00 5,456,016.00 6,143,520.00
Expenses Creditors 19 V 53 9,752,222.91 2,076,472.18 11,828,695.09 11,838,962.78

Non-Current Liabilities :
Retirement Gratuity 650,322,256.02 650,322,256.02 611,842,559.82
Lease Creditor - Long term T 52 11,037,542.00 11,037,542.00 15,626,387.00

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total Liabilites 756,121,595.05 2,905,026.56 949,973.36 700,609,586.29 670,629,491.07

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total Net Assets 3,769,619,597.07 73,995,033.35 2,905,331.38 3,846,519,961.80 3,655,771,297.46

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Net Assets/Equity :
Capital

1. Capital Spent Capital Grant 2,192,044,294.28 1,073,686.50 1,097,232.67 2,194,215,213.45 2,038,353,405.72
2. Capital Spent Capital Grant work in 20-1 A1 17 417,051,181.23 417,051,181.23 327,910,014.79

Progress
3. Unspent Capital Grant Building 20-1 A 54 18,323,528.82 536,342.33 18,859,871.15 17,479,169.27

Specific Reserves :
Unspent Capital Grant Equipments
Furniture, Library Books & Periodicals 20-2 B 55 11,750,643.46 11,750,643.46 10,294,632.84

Rehabilitation :
1.Rehabilitation Spent Grant

Captial Nature Work in Progress 20-1 A1 17 44,097,894.22 44,097,894.22 40,283,699.13
2. Rehabilitation Unspent Grant 20-3 B1 56 (124,551.38) (124,551.38) 310,386.40
3. Donations Buildings - Dental Faculty 1,225,101,020.00 1,225,101,020.00 1,225,101,020.00
4. Donation Assets 1,250,493,730.41 2,019,413.60 1,252,513,144.01 1,114,407,844.47
5. Donation Buildings - Foreign & Local 582,101,911.44 582,101,911.44 582,101,914.44

Reserves :
1. Fixed Assets Revaluation Reserve 2,440,915,018.34 4,542,659.83 2,445,457,678.17 2,445,457,677.17
2. General Reserve of the Institution (4,917,168,683.18) 59,083,271.87 1,229,356.38 (4,856,856,054.93) (4,612,157,984.89)

Restricted Funds :
1. (a) Endowment Fund 22-1 C 140-146 85,048,913.94 85,048,913.94 76,875,613.78

(b) Student Bursaries Fund 42,400.00 42,400.00 42,400.00
2. Special Grants 22-2 D 57 1,804,207.66 1,804,207.66 1,685,766.43
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3. Research Grants 22-3 E 147-155 91,394,305.35 91,394,305.35 80,770,251.32
4. Cash Donations 60,038.09 60,038.09 60,038.09
5. Other Funds 22-4 G 156-164 326,726,144.39 7,276,001.55 334,002,145.94 306,795,451.50

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
3,769,619,597.07 73,995,033.35 2,905,331.38 3,846,519,961.80 3,655,771,297.46

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

The notes annexed form an integral part of these financial statements

Certified correct

Prof. H. ABEYGUNAWARDENA T. M. D. RANJITH DE ALWIS M. D. GANTHUNE

Vice Chancellor Registrar Bursar
28.02.2007.

10.01.04 Statement of Financial Position as at December, 2007

Description Note 2007 2007 2006
No. General Fund Total Total

University Ext. Exam Unit
SL Rs. SL. Rs. SL Rs. SL Rs. SL. Rs.

Operating Revenue
Recurrent Grant
(a) Government Grant-Recurrent 1,666,584,000.00 1,666,584,000.00 1,480,450,000.00

Other Income
(b) Government Grant - Student Bursary 12,162,000.00 12,162,000.00 15,481,400.00
(c) Government Grant - Mahapola 15,482,250.00 15,482,250.00 37,477,000.00

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
1,694,228,250.00 1,694,228,250.00 1,533,408,400.00

Rehabilitation Grant for Maintenance - 14,324,631.58 14,324,631.58 36,401,439.19
Interest from Investment 19,911,100.72 19,911,100.72 17,427,572.61
Interest from Staff Loan - 75,236.11 75,236.11 85,055.27
Rent from Properties 4,382,593.25 4,382,593.25 3,929,394.39
Sale of Old Stores 365,500.00 365,500.00 1,922,555.00
Sale of Produce 3,085.00 3,085.00 158,327.50
Miscellaneous Receipt 27,252,619.73 53,910.90 27,306,530.63 9,374,217.89
Registration Fees(Undergraduate) 2,656,765.24 12,651,350.00 15,308,115.24 13,393,812.60
Registration Fees (Postgraduate) * - - - 259,000.00
Tuition Fees (Postgraduate) * - - - 784,000.00
Examination Fees (Undergraduate) 166,690.75 14,116,220.00 14,282,910.75 9,852,944.00
Examination Fees (Postgraduate) - - - 565,000.00
Sale of Publication 45,514.30 1,571,323.00 1,616,837.30 2,888,793.00
Library Fine 566,798.67 566,798.67 589,749.44
Medical Fees 389,390.00 389,390.00 344,268.50
Proceeds from Anciliary Activities 7,829,209.69 7,829,209.69 8,887,852.25

Transfered to Capital Fund 63,569,267.35 - (5,000,000.00)
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

1,772,122,148.93 28,468,040.01 1,800,590,188.94 1,635,272,381.74
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

*No Postgraduate Regisration for Full time courses in 2007
**Due to correction of classification error.

Statement of Financial Performance for year ended 31st December 2007

Description Note 2007 2007 2006
No. General Fund Total Total

University Ext. Exam Unit
SL Rs. SL. Rs. SL Rs. SL Rs. SL. Rs.

Operating Expenses
58-73

Personal Emolument 1,423,388,211.25 11,738,440.62 1,435,126,651.87 1,422,158,951.22
Travelling 5,230,955.41 17,533.64 5,248,489.05 6,482,689.69

Description Note Sch. Page General Fund Eastern and Total Total
No. No. Univsersity Ext. Jaffna Unit

Exam. For Displ. 2007 2006
Unit Student
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

**

**



662 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'05'22
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 22.05.2009

Supplies and Consumables Used 94,833,836.96 1,651,580.12 96,485,417.08 74,341,785.38
Maintenance Expenses 7,969,888.28 132,519.30 8,102,407.58 7,750,357.78

Constractual Services 153,250,769.40 1,967,984.70 155,218,754.10 145,630,117.37

Research and Development 7,905,093.82 - 7,905,093.82 5,491,432.08
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 247,928,003.94 893,913.17 248,821,917.11 437,422,504.13

Other Operating Expenses 80,314,621.66 6,163,241.04 86,477,862.70 119,077,621.56
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Total Operating Expenses 2,020,821,380.72 22,565,212.59 (2,043,386,593.31) 2,218,355,459.21
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period (248,699,231.79) 5,902,827.42 (242,796,404.37) (583,083,077.47)
Finance Cost 1,796,779.00 - 1,796,779.00 918,872.50

Gain on Sales of Property Plant
and Equipment - - - (728,986.72)

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total non Operating Revenue (Expenses) 1,796,779.00 - 1,796,779.00 189,885.78

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Surplus/(Deficit Before Extra Ordinary Items (250,496,010.79) 5,902,827.42 (244,593,183.37) (583,272,963.25)
Extra Ordinary Items

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Surplus/(Deficit for the Period) (250,496,010.79) 5,902,827.42 (244,593,183.37) (583,272,963.25)

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

10.1.6 Appropriation Account for the Year ended 31st December, 2007

Description  2007 2007 2006
General Fund Total Total

University Ext. Exam. Unit
SL Rs. SL Rs. SL. Rs. SL Rs.

Excess of Income over Expenditure (250,496,010.79) 5,902,827.42 (244,593,183.37) (583,272,963.25)
Balance brought forward from previous year (4,666,567,785.72) 53,180,444.45 (4,613,387,341.27) (4,030,346,075.18)
Add : Income in respect of past years and other adjustments 7,595,281.75 - 7,595,281.75 4,042,360.41

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
(4,909,468,514.76) 59,083,271.87 (4,850,385,242.89) (4,609,576,678.02)

Less: Payment in respect of past years and other adjustments 7,700,168.42 - 7,700,168.42 3,810,663.25
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Balance Carried Forward (4,917,168,683.18) 59,083,271.87 (4,858,085,411.31) (4,605,766,014.77)
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Prof. H. ABEYGUNAWARDENA T. M. D. RANJITH DE ALWIS M. D. GANTHUNE

Vice-chancellor Registrar Bursar

28.02.2007.

10.1.7  Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended 31st December, 2007

Accumulated Revaluation Translation Total
Fund Reserve Reserve

Balance as at 31st December, 2005 1,373,965,737.03 2,445,457,677.17 3,819,423,414.20
Net gains and losses not recognised in the 419,620,846.51 - - 419,620,846.51
Statement of financial performance
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period (583,272,963.25) - - (583,272,963.25)

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December, 2006 1,210,313,620.29 2,445,457,677.17 - 3,655,771,297.46

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Description Note 2007 2007 2006
No. General Fund Total Total

University Ext. Exam Unit
SL Rs. SL. Rs. SL Rs. SL Rs. SL. Rs.
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Net gains and losses not recognised in the 435,341,847.71 - - 435,341,847.71
statement of financial performance

Surplus/(Deficit)for the period (244,593,183.37) - - (244,593,183.37)
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Balance as at 31st December, 2007 1,401,062,284.63 2,445,457,677.17 - 3,846,519,961.80
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

* Gratuity Provision Classified under non Current (liability)

10.1.5  Cash flow for the Year Ended
31st December, 2007

2007 2006
Sl Rs SL Rs.

1.Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus/Deficit from ordinary Activities (244,593,183.37) (583,272,963.25)

Non Cash movements
Depreciation 248,821,917.11 437,422,504.13
Gratuity & other adjustment 103,190,434.45 170,753,184.67
Net prior year adjustment (104,886.67) 231,697.00
Interest Income (19,911,100.72) 17,427,572.61

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before working capital Changes 87,403,180.80 42,561,995.16

Working Capital Changes
(Increase)/Decrease Stock (9,677,697.06) (2,863,453.44)
(Increase)/Decrease Goods in transit (6,370,847.20) (832,215.80)
(Increase)/Decrease Receivable from violation of bonds, etc 7,236,613.62 (20,955,674.73)
(Increase)/Decrease Money due from other Unversities (1,024,584.21) (389,801.44)
(Increase)/Decrease Sundry Debtors (7,189,308.34) (4,112,069.18)
(Increase)/Decrease Spplies and Advances (2,145,536.38) 347,871.93
(Increase)/Decrease Loans & Advances to Student (2,275.00) 315.00
(Increase)/Decrease Loans & Advances to Staff (4,731,542.55) (4,093,577.82)
(Increase)/Decrease Miscellaneous Advance 601,374.98 (21,430,219.12)
(Increase)/Decrease Prepayments Advances & Deposits 24,727.00 (34,727.00)
(Increase)/Decrease Refundable Deposits 1,119,655.93 618,747.75
(Increase)/Decrease Sundry Creditors 1,067,359.78 378,710.24
(Increase)/Decrease Lease Creditors (687,504.00) 6,143,520.00
(Increase)/Decrease Expense Creditors (11,749,717.12) 2,801,826.98
(Increase)/Decrease Gratuity paid (53,437,340.00) (36,719,692.00)

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cast flows from Operating activities 436,560.25 1,858,751.47

2. Cash flow from Investing activities

Addition to fixed Assets (120,515,891.89) (250,681,782.83)
Work in Progress (92,955,361.53) (3,874,685.24)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed Assets 452,455.75 771,030.00
Restricted Fund investment I (4,098,541.60) (6,596,228.60)
Restricted Fund investment II (3,922,180.38) (15,097,275.00)
Interest Income 19,556,132.41 2,837,893.00
Self Financing Project (240,536,305.15) (194,350,020.68)

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cash flow from investing Activities (442,019,692.39) (466,991,069.35)

Accumulated Revaluation Translation Total
Fund Reserve Reserve

*
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3. Cash Flow from Financing Activics

Government Grant for:
Equipment, Books & Periodicals 87,300,000.00 71,550,000.00
Building Programe 117,500,000.00 136,400,000.00
Rehabilitation Capital Nature 9,377,421.41 8,586,993.00
Information Technology 3,000,000.00 15,000,000.00

Self Financing Project 291,395,901.44 257,094,626.82
Lease Creditors 4,588,845.00 15,626,387.00

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 513,162,167.85 504,258,006.82

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 71,579,035.71 35,408,186.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 130,332,398.00 94,924,212.00

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 201,911,433.71 130,332,398.00

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

10.1.8 The Statutory Report on Financial Statement and the Annual Statement of Accounts of the University of Peradeniya for
the Year 2007 in keeping with the requirement specified in Section 13 (6) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

1. These accounting statements have been prepared and submitted in terms of Sections 106 (1) and 107 (b) of the Universities Act,
No. 16 of 1978 and amendments incorporated into it thereafter and in terms of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

2. The need to amalgamate of accounts of the following two independent Institutions namely PGIA and PGIS was clarified from the
Treasury with the instruction from the Auditor General. In compliance with the instruction received from the Treasury (Ref. No.
PE/168/4/2003 of 15th October, 2003 of Deputy Director for Director, Department of Public Enterprises.) the Financial
Statement of these two Institutions were not incorporated into the University financial statements.

3. The presentation and interpretation of accounts have been done by maintaining consistency and adhering Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards for public sector Organization and Generally accepted Accounting practices which are usually followed in presenting
Annual Statement of Accounts of a University.

A Financial Highlights

(1) Govt. Grants 2006 2007
Rs. Rs.

I. Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditure 1,480,450,000 1,642,650,000
II. Grant Received from University Grant

Commission for Recurrent Expenditure - 23,934,000
III. Special Grant received for Fac. of Agri. from

Ministry of Plantation/Through Treasury-Recurrent 250,000 250,000
IV. Government Grant for Mahapola Scholarship Payments 17,866,450 15,482,250
V. Government Grant for Bursary Payments 11,863,600 12,162,000

VI. Capital 101Rehabilitation Programme 45,000,000 41,300,000
VII. Capital 102 Equipment and Books and Periodicals 71,050,000 87,300,000

VIII. Capital 103 Building Programme 136,400,000 117,500,000
IX. IT improvement/-Fac. of Eng. Bldg. Struc. for increase

intake of Computer Eng. Students 15,000,000 -
Library Automation - 3,000,000

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
Total 1,777,880,050 1,943,578,250

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
XII. Self Financing Projects 252,905,557 245,923,676

2007 2006
Sl Rs SL Rs.
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AUDITOR   GENERAL’S   DEPARTMENT

The Vice-Chancellor,
University of Peradeniya.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statement of the University of Peradeniya for the year ended 31st
December 2007 in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Section 13(7) (a) of the Finance Act,

No. 38 of 1971

THE audit of financial statements of the University of Peradeniya for the year ended 31st December 2007 was carried out under my direction
in pursuance of provisions in Ariticle 154(1) of Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with
Section 108 and 111 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Sub - Sections (3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No.38
of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108(2) of the Univerisities Act and Section 13 (7) (a) of the finance Act, No.38 of 1971.

1.2 Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements :

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statement in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting standards. This responsibility includes, designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from metrial misstatements, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting an applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are resonable in the circumstances.

1.3 Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion :

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions.
The scope  and extent of such review and test were such as to enable as wide and audit coverage as possible within the limitations
of staff, other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standars to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from mateiral misstatements. The audit includes the examination
on test basis of  evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessments of accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by the management in the preparation of financial statements as well as evaluating their overall
presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were  necessary
for the purpose of my audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. Sub-sections (3) and (4)
of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No.38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent
of the audit.

2. Financial Statements :

2.1. Opinion :

In view of my comments and observations appearing in this report, I am unable to express an opinion on the financial statements
of the University of Peradeniya for the year ended 31st December 2007 presented for audit.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements :

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Accounting Standards :

Non -compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards are shown below.

(a) A sum of Rs.134,450 payable for Air Tickets to two lecturers had been set-off against the balance of Rs.1,054,426 receivable
from the University Grants Commission as at 31st December 2007 contrary to Standard No.03.

(b) The written down value of the fixed assets at a total cost of  Rs.697,775.81 had become zero as at 31st December 2007 and
continued to be used without taking action to revalue and to taking into account the values in terms of Standard No.18
No disclosure had been made in respect of the revaluation done during the year 2002.

(c) Assets to the value of Rs.2,611,266.394 had been purchased as at 31st December 2007 from the Treasury provisions in
terms of Standard No.24 and its annual depreciation had been charged against the operating results. Therefore the net value
of Treasury Grants as at that date (differed liability) had not been shown in the financial statements. Further the policy of
the institution on accounting Treasury grants had not been disclosed in the financial statements.
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2.2.2 Accounting Policies :

The following observations are made :

(a) Although it had been stated in Note 8.1 (e) of the financial statements for the yaer under review that the financial statements
are prepared on accrual basis. land canteen and electricity income amounting to Rs.550,880 rates payable amounting to
Rs.1,034.562 and capital expenditure of Rs.2,636.198 payable had not been brought to account on accrual basis.

(b) Depreciation had been provided for the whole year in respect of fixed assets valued at Rs.258,621.191 purchased during
2007 and depreciation had not been provided for the year under review in respect of assets valued at Rs.5,923.845 disposed
of  contrary to the University Grants Commission Circular No.649 dated 05th October, 1995.

2.2.3 Accounting Deficiencies :

The following accounting deficiencies were observed in audit -

(a) Omissions from the Accounts :

(i) Hall charges, Library charges and fines amounting to Rs.1,278,018 receivable for the year 2007 from the students and
amounts receivable for the previous years had not been computed and brought to account.

(ii) Adjustments had not been made in the accounts in respect of computer accessories and office equipment valued at
Rs.2,817,600 removed from the use at 4 Libraries.

(iii) Provision had not been made in the accounts in respect of compensation amounting to Rs.485,621 payable to relevant
parties in respect of 12 court cases finalized during 2007.

(iv) Verification of goods had been carried out by the Head of each Section instead of appointing a Board of Survey to carry
out the verification. A sample check revealed that the necessary adjustments had not been made in the accounts in respect
of 2,133 unconsuable items, shortages of 1,876 items and excesses of 746 items as stated in the verification reports.

(v) The vehicle valued at Rs.2,150,000 which had been purchased from the Research Fund of the Science Faculty and handed
over to the University in writing had not been brought to account.

(vi) An examination of the files of the Lecturers who had violated agreements revealed that security bonds amounting to
Rs.1,503,154 due from 03 Lecturers had not been brought to account and a sum of  Rs.1,547,853 receivable from 05
Lecturers and not been included in the financial statements, even though it had been shown in the Ledger Accounts.

(b) Overstatements and Understatments in the Accounts :

(i) Deficit aggregating Rs.842,688 occurred due to incurring expenditure over the income in 13 accounts under Research Funds
had been adjusted to the surplus of other such accounts resulting in an understatement of the balance of the other Funds
Account by a similar amount.

(ii) Unpaid salaries amounting to Rs.511,131 remained since year 1995 had been removed from the books by crediting the
salaries account instead of being credited to the accumulated fund and therefore, the salaries for the year had been
understated by a similar amount.

(iii) Bursaries relating to year 2007 amounting to Rs.196,700 returned by the Bank had been brought to account  as bursaries
received for year 2008.

(iv) Mahapola and bursaries amounting to Rs.15,513,300 receivable and lawyers fees amounting to Rs.1,128,700 payable
in respect of the year under review had been understated in the accounts.

(c) Inappropriate Disclousres in the Accounts.

(i) Goods had been ordered on 23rd May  2001 for a sum of Rs.179,178 and customs duty and other expenses amounting
to Rs.21,881 also had been incurred on these goods which had been misplaced. Even though an insurance cover had been
obtained for these goods on 20th April 2001 by paying in installment of Rs.1,602 action had not been taken to obtain
the claim for goods from the insurance corporation. These goods had continued to be shown in the accounts as goods
in transit.

(ii) A sum of Rs.3,888,500 received by the University in 2007 as interest on staff loans had been brought to account as “Loans
Interest Fund” under other funds, instead of being brought to account as income under Income and Expenditure Account.

(iii) The difference of Rs.13,339,999 between the stock book balances and physical stock balance from year 1995 to 31st
December 2007 had been brought to account as stock adjustment under sundry creditors, without being identified and
settle the difference.
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iv. Eight Instances were observed at a sample check where administration charges amounting to Rs.1,389,687 charged by
the University on External Researches during the year under review had been accounted under Other Funds without being
credited to the University Fund.

v.  The balance of Rs.75,848,243 shown in the balance sheet as at 31st December 2006 as the balance of Motor Vehicle
Account included a sum of Rs.1,931,000 being the value of 14 condemned and non using vehicles.

vi. Equipment valued at Rs.3,482,000 purchased during 2005 and 2006 had been inappropriately shown  in the accounts
as work-in-progress.

2.2.4 Unreconciled Accounts :

The following unreconciled accounts were observed -

(a) The balance of the unpaid salaries shown in the financial statements as at end of the year under review was Rs.939,200 where
as the total of balances shown in the schedules was Rs.295,860 thus showing a difference of Rs.643,340.

(b) Differences were observed between the balances shown in the Schedules attached to the financial statements and the relevant
registers as shown below.

Description Balance Register Balance Difference
according according

to the to the
Schedule Register

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Water Charges 1,195,966 Lists of income on 457,036 738,930
receivable from 15 Water
Institutions

Rent income receivable 227,055 Lists of rent income 95,340 131,715
Balances receivable 18,858 Lists of income 13,868 4,990
from 03 canteens from canteens

2.2.5 Unexplained Differences :

The following differences were observed between the balances of Postgraduate Institute of Agriculture and the Postgraduate
Institute of Science shown in the financial statements of the University of Peradeniya and the balances shown in the financial
statements of the relevant institutions.

Item Balance Other relevant Balance Difference
according to Institution according to

the the financial
financial statements

statements of the
of the University relevant

Institution
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance receivable 1,777,693 Postgraduate Institute of Agriculture 166,131 1,611,562
Balance receivable 3,082 Postgraduate Institue of Science - 3,082
Water and electricity income 923,671 Postgraduate Institute of Science 839,051 84,620
Water and electricity income 1,229,179 Postgraduate Institute of Agriculture 1,299,460 70,281
Water and electricity income receivable 372,863 Postgraduate Institute of Agriculture 318,206 54,657
Water and electricity income receivable 359,701 Postgraduate Institute of Science 169,686 190,015

2.2.6 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observation are made.

(a) Payment of Staff Loans.
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i. Although 302 staff loan balances amounting to Rs.13,688,588 had remained unrecovered as at 31st December 2007, these
balances had been removed from the Distress Loan Register and from the Accounts.

ii. According to the financial statements, the staff loan balance was Rs.93,757,701 as at the end of the year under review,
whilst the balance according to the relevant schedules was Rs.94,451,004 thus indicating a difference of Rs.693,303.

iii. 58 Staff loan balances amounting to Rs.2,756,588 shown in the accounts had remained outstanding for periods ranging
01 to 07 years.

(b) Payment of Advances.

i. The balance of local supplies advances totaling Rs.2,726,621 includes 81 balances of Rs.670,289 older than 06 years,
but action had not been taken to settle these advances. Further, 48 balances amounting to Rs.2,021,170 relating to year
2007 also had not been settled.

ii. Advances amounting to Rs.642,186, Rs.2,717,813 and Rs.217,261 respectively granted for Reserch and Other Funds,
Capital and Voted Services during 1990 to 2006 had not been settled even as at 31st December, 2007.

(c) Amounts Receivable for Violation of Bonds.

i. According to the Register submitted for audit, a sum of Rs.80,484,800 was receivable from 167 Lecturers who had violated
bonds during 1988 to 2007. Proper action had not been taken to recover these dues.

ii. Although it had been informed that money recoverable form 38 Lecturers who had gone abroad violating agreements and
security bonds will be recovered from their Provident Funds, the money had not yet been recovered. Further, action had
not been taken to recover the value of bonds amounting to Rs.20,841,443 in excess of the balances of the provident fund
from the sureties or through legal proceedings.

iii. The sum of Rs.7,573,673 recoverable on security bonds could not be recovered as the files of 38 Lecturers who had violated
bonds had been misplaced and action had not been taken up to date in respect of the officers responsible.

(d) Action had not been taken to recover the sum of Rs.127,896 and Rs.1,530,710 respectively recoverable from 08 officers
and 09 external institutions for water, electricity and rent.

(e) Action had not been taken on recover the lease rent amounting to Rs.10,078,200 as at 31st December, 2007 in respect of
lease of land to the following 04 institutions.

Institution Period of revenue Amount
recoverable Recoverable

Rs.

Bank of Ceylon - Getambe 1992 to 2007 1,552,600
Ceylon Transport Board 1987 to 2007 2,292,000
Pradeshiya Sabha - Gangawata Korale (for lease of Ratmale Fair Site- Peradeniya) 1997 to 2007 2,882,000
Upcountry Peasantry Rehabilitation Commission 1997 to 2007 2,318,000
Land Provided to Horgad Institute 2006 to 2007 1,033,600

–––––––––––
10,078,200

––––––––––––––––––––––

2.2.7 Lack of Evidence for Audit

The following items of accounts could not be satisfactorily vouched in audit due to non-submission of evidence indicated against
each item for audit.

Item Amount Description
Rs.

Land 1,220,000,000 Register of Fixed Assets.
Buildings 2,260,610,635 Schedules including the details of land/buildings

Board of Survey Reports
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Equipment and tools 56,031,715 Registers of Fixed Assets schedules showing the
Motor vehicles 21,103,855 make up of balance
Furniture and equipment 67,138,649
Office and other equipment 90,317,829
Laboratory and teaching Equipment 106,960,890
Library books and publications 60,993,093

Sundry creditors 44,757,466 Register of Creditors Age analysis of debtors
Sundry debtors 30,352,734 Confirmation of balances.

Income from property 4,382,593 Schedules showing the make up of balances
Rent income 27,252,620

Research funds 8,113,030 Ledger accounts to examine the 75 research accounts

Payments to visiting lecturers 6,686,754 No. of visiting lecturers assigned to each course or institution
No. of hours worked by the lecturers.

2.2.8 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Managment Decisions

Instances of non-compliance with following laws, rules, regulations and management decisions were observed in audit.

Reference to Laws Rules etc. Non-compliance

(a) Section 11 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 The required approval had not been obtained for the sum of Rs.29,500.00
invested as at 31st December, 2007.

(b) Universities Act, No.16 of 1978 as amended by Act,
No.07 of 1985

(i) Section 24.1 Although the Council should consists of 25 members, only 24 members
had been appointed.

(ii) Section 99(1) Although all the revenue should be credited to the University Fund, a sum
of Rs.194,894,083 had been credited to other funds.

(c) Section 153 of the Inland Revenue Act, No.10 of 2006 Withholding Tax amounting to Rs.201,220 had not been recovered in
respect of the purchases valued at Rs.4,024,390 and remitted to the
Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

(d) Government Financial Regulations

(i) 102, 104 and 156(i) 37 vehicles had met with accidents in 51 instances since year 2000 and
a sum of Rs.2,316,408 had been spent on repairs to these vehicles.
However, action in terms of Financial Regulations had not been taken
in this regard.

(ii) 751 Although all the goods received by Government Departments should be
immediately entered in the Inventory Register, 507 items in the New
Akbar Hall had not been taken into books.

(iii) 756 Verification of goods had not been carried out in 72 offices of the
University for the year 2007

(iv) 1646 The Running Charts of the vehicles should be submitted to the Auditor
General before the 15th day of the following month. But Running Charts
relating to 32 vehicles for year 2007 had not been submitted

(v) 373 Even though the advances should be settled immediately after the related
work is completed, delays of 35 to 344 days were observed in settlement
of  advances amounting to Rs.993,691 obtained in 27 instances.

Item Amount Description
Rs.
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(vi) 570 (c) Sundry deposits amounting to Rs.276,314 made in 83 instances during
the period 1996 to 2004 had not been credited to Government
Revenue.

(e) Establishments Code for the University Grants Commission and the Higher Educational Institutions.

(i) Section 2.1 of Chapter XXVII Four wheel tractor valued at Rs.3,689,550 and (02) two wheel tractors
valued at Rs.218,950 and 2 wheel hand tractor the value of which had not
been assessed attached to two Faculties had not been registered.

(ii) Chapter 26.3 The University had employed 116 Visiting Lecturers at 03 Faculties
for various courses and payments amounting to Rs.3,233,673 had been
made to them during the period January to September 2007. An estimate
had not been prepared on the requirement of Visiting Lecturers at the
beginning of the year.

(f) Establishment Code of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

(i) Section 5 of Chapter XIX Rent for official quarters had not been recovered from 11 officers from
the date of occupying on the year 2007

(ii) Section 13 of Chapter XXIV Festival advances amounting to Rs.152,729 paid to casual employees
and 75 officers during the  years prior to 2006 had not been recovered
even up to 31st December, 2007.

(g) Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/12 dated The budgeted Balance Sheet, Income and Expenditure Account and the
02nd June, 2003 of the Director General of Public Cash Flow Statement had not been presented in the Annual Budget.
Enterprises Paragraph 5.2.1

(h) Treasury Circular No. 1A1/2002/02 dated 28th Computers valued at Rs.12,877,860 had been  purchased during 2007, but
November, 2002 of the Secretary to the Treasury the Formats No.02 to 10 had not been obtained from the suppliers and a

Register had not been maintained in respect of the said computers.

(i) Public Administration Circular No.01/2002 of State emblem had not been printed on 08 vehicles purchased in year 2006
02nd February, 2002 in terms of the said Circular.

Public Administration Circular No.22/99 dated The Vice-Chancellor and the Registrar had used vehicles for private
08th October, 1999 as amended by Public purposes without paying Rs.350 per month for using official vehicles
Administration Circular No.22/99 (iv) dated for private purposes.
27th December, 2004 Paragraph 2.22

(k) University Grants Commission Circular No.855 A female officer had been recruited to serve in the Institute of Emergency
Health Situation and Disaster Management at a monthly salary of
Rs.30,000 contrary to the Circular and salaries amounting to Rs.360,000
had been paid up to December, 2007.

(l) Paragraph 3.4 of Procurement Guidelines Although quotations should be called for at least from 03 institutions in
respect of purchases over Rs.50,000 adhering the tender procedure,
quotations had not been called for in respect of goods valued at
Rs.1,050, 173 in 05 instances during the year under review.

2.2.9 Transactions not supported by Adequate Authority

The following observations are made.

(a) Language Proficiency Allowances amounting to Rs.25,016,228 had been paid from 1994 to 31st  December,  2007 contrary
to the letter No. PE/1/174/11 (b) dated 10th March, 1978 of the Director General of Public Enterprises.

Reference to Laws Rules etc. Non-compliance
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(b) Contributions to the Employees Provident fund and the Employees Trust Fund had been computed for Academic Allowances
amounting to Rs.557,657,638 contrary to the Letter No. m%$wdh;k$11 dated 24th August, 2001, of the Commissioner of
Labour and the Circular Letter No. PD/I/NS/DL/GS/A/078 dated 18th July, 2003 of the Director General of Budget. As a
result, contributions amounting to Rs.100,378,371 had been overpaid from 1997 to 31st December, 2007.

(c) Allowances amounting to Rs.312,185 had been paid to the approved cadre of the University without obtaining the approval
of the Treasury in terms of Letter No. PE1/174/1/2003 dated 29 January 2003 of the Secretary to the Treasury.

2.2.10 Transactions of Contentious Nature

The following observation are made :

(a) A goods clearing institution had not handed over the goods valued at Rs.821,076 as at 31st December, 2007 and it had been
agreed with that institution to recover a sum of Rs.461,753. However, this amount had been brought to account as Rs.405,732.
The sum of  Rs.86,889 paid by that Institution in settlement of the said amount up to the year under review had been shown
in a suspense account instead of adjusting the relevant account.

(b) Although a sum of Rs.6,434,252 had been  collected to the account No. 110123900 maintained for accounting income earned
from research laboratories, only a sum of Rs.2,423,091 had been credited to the relevant fund. The balance money had been
credited to the Bank accounts held in the names of the  Technical Officers of the said laboratories.

(c) Whilst there was adequate funds in the Fund Account to which the sale proceeds of books published by the University
lecturers are credited, the expenditure of Rs.347,300 and Rs.253,010 respectively incurred on a printing machine and
stationeries relating to the above purpose had been met out of the University Fund.

3. Financial and Operating Review

3.1 Financial Review

3.1.1 Financial Results.

According to the financial Statements presented, the working of the University for the year ended 31st December, 2007 had
resulted  in a deficit of Rs.1,938,821,433 before taking into account the Government Grant for  recurrent expenditure. This deficit
had been reduced to Rs.244,593,183 due to the Government Grant of Rs.1,694,228,250 received for the recurrennt expenditure
of Rs.2,045,183,372. The deficit for the preceding year before taking into account the Government Grant for recurrent
expenditure was Rs. 2,111,681,363 and due to the Government Grant of Rs.1,533,408,400 received for recurrent expenditure,
this deficit had reduced up to Rs.578,272,963.

3.2 Operating Review

3.2.1 Performance

The following matters were observed :

(a) According to the information furnished to audit in relation to each Faculty for 04 academic years the number of studetns
appeared for the final year examinations, the number of students who had obtained passes or referred, and failed and the
No. of students passed, failed and referred as a percentage of the number of students appeared for the examinations are given
below.

Faculty Year Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Students Students Students Students Passed as students failed

appeared for passed Failed and a percentage of Referred as a
the examination Referred the No. appeared percentage of

No. appeared

Arts 2004 General 226 207 19 91.6 8.4
Special 441 422 19 95.7 4.3

2005 General 187 Gen.149 Gen. 38 79.7 20.3
Special 370 Spe. 362 Spe. 08 97.8 2.2

2006 General 402 398 04 99 .99
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Special 454 403 51 88.76 11.23
2007 General 399 399 - 100 -

Special 740 682 58 92.16 7.83

Medical 2004 26 17 09 65.4 34.6
2005 411 341 70 82.9 17
2006 177 144 33 81.4 18.6
2007 182 138 44 75.82 24.17

Agriculture 2004 ** 377 372 05 98.7 1.3
2005 188 166 22 88.3 11.7
2006 160 142 18 88.8 11.2
2007 170 165 05 97.05 2.94

Dental Science 2004 83 52 31 62.6 37.4
2005 73 67 06 91.8 8.2
2006 136 123 13 90.4 9.5
2007 148 85 61 57.43 41.21

Engineering 2004 513 284 229 55.4 44.6
2005 Information Not furnished
2006 326 317 09 97.2 2.8
2007 331 307 24 92.74 7.25

Science 2004 General 332 260 72 78.3 21.7
Special 107 106 1 99.1 0.9

2005 General 201 148 53 73.6 26.4
Special 88 88 - 100 -

2006 General 304 282 22 92.8 7.2
Special 92 92 - 100 -

2007 General 167 128 35 76.64 23.35
Special 160 160 - 100 -

Veterinary 2004 64 34 30 53.1 46.9
Medicine 2005 139 129 10 92.8 7

2006 66 64 02 96.9 1.4
2007 55 55 - 100 -

* Two batches had been enrolled simultaneously.

(b) Details of approved cadre and actual cadre under each Faculty of the University during the year under review are given bellow.

Faculty No. of Designation Approved Actual No. Excess
Depts. Cadre Shortage

Veterinary 04 Professor 06 07 01
Medicine Lecturer 36 30 (06)
Dental Sciences 07 Professor 09 07 (02)

Lecturer 59 54 (05)
Agriculture 09 Professor 26 27 01

Lecturer 78 70 (08)
Engineering * 08 Professor 12 12 -

Lecturer 130 86 (44)
Arts 16 Professor 40 33 (07)

Lecturer 159 147 (12)

Faculty Year Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Students Students Students Students Passed as students failed

appeared for passed Failed and a percentage of Referred as a
the examination Referred the No. appeared percentage of

No. appeared
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Medicine 17 Professor 25 14 (11)
Lecturer 106 88 (18)

Science 09 Professor 31 29 (02)
Lecturer 102 72 (30)

 Allied Health Science 05 Lecturer 22 05 (17)

* Temporary Lecturers had been recruited for the vacancies in the Academic Cadre.

(c) Expenditure incurred on acadamic activities and the average expenditure per student during the year under review as compared
with the preceding two years are shown below:-

Faculty No. of Students Direct Academic Expenses Cost per Student

2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007 2005 2006 2007
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Arts 3,496 3,358 2,883 187,103,745 224,374,011 221,338,605 53,519 66,818 76,773'
Engineering 1,624 1,671 1,374 142,047,515 174,692,788 178,329,175 87,467 104,544 129,788
Agriculture 738 772 811 114,615,866 155,333,478 147,148,990 155,306 201,209 181,441
Medicine 1,082 1,107 955 139,257,096 165,673,478 167,376,423 128,703 149,660 175,263
Veterinary Medicine 453 376 366 46,558,110 61,561,622 61,076,328 102,772 163,728 166,875
Science 1,316 1,267 1,398 131,663,176 164,891,799 187,603,577 100,048 130,143 134,194
Dental Sciences 438 372 375 99,419,902 112,151,811 108,407,943 226,986 301,483 289,088
Allied Health - 176 307 - 3,299,531 13,895,529 - 18,747 45,262

Sciences

(d) Outside individuals had donated money to the University to award scholarship to the students who are having financial
difficulties and the Council had decided to utilize a sum of Rs.6,656,198 equivalent to 80% of the interest expected from
investing the above money for the intended purpose. A sysmtematic programme had not been prepared to fulfill the purpose
and as a result, the sum of Rs.5,607,499 equivalent to 84% which should be untilized awarding scholarships to the students
for the year 2007 had not been utilized.

(e) A sum of Rs.5,815,333 relating to 58 non - inplemented researches as at 31st  December, 2007 had been transferred to the
Non-implemented Reseraches Account. Therefore, it is observed that the expected purposes had not been successfully
fulfilled.

(f) Out of the provisions amounting to Rs.6,299,276 made to the University in 2006 for researches, a sum of Rs.3,601,158
equivalent to 57% had not been utilized even as at 31st December, 2007.

(g) Although the periods of 13 researches valued at Rs.1,861,450 commenced utilizing the provisions of the University during
the year 2006 had been lapsed, the final reports of these researches had not been handed over even by December 2007.

3.2.2.  Deficiencies in Contract Administration

The Following observations are made :

(a) According to agreements in respect of 22 works relating to repairs to buildings and constructions, of the University, of which
the estimated cost was Rs.56,181,596 should be completed during the years 2000 to 2004. However, items valued at
Rs.35,359,094 of these contracts had not been done and had abandoned as at 31st December, 2007. Action had not been
taken during the year 2006 to get those items completed and action had been taken against the contractors in terms of the
agreements for non completion of the contracts and for defective works.

(b) The Vice-Chancellor of the University had entered into an agreement with the Central Engineering Consultancy Bureau on
25th  July,  2005 for awarding them the construction of a hostel at an estimated value of Rs.150 million. The following matters
were observed at an examination of this construction.

(i) At the time of selection of a land for construction of this hostel, lands  nearby New Akbar Hall of the Engineering Faculty
or the Marcus Fernando Hall had been identified as suitable for the purpose. However, finally a land at Uda-Peradeniya

Faculty No. of Designation Approved Actual No. Excess
Depts. Cadre Shortage
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with no facilities and not suitable for a hostel and possibility of having earth slips had been selected. Therefore, a sum
of Rs.28,221,230 and been spent on extra works of the construction.

(ii) According to the original plan, it had been estimated to  construct a concrete toilet system and it has been changed to
construct the sewerage system using 27 Bio-cells on a direction given by the Vice-chancellor. However, there was no
proper approval for these changes. When filling soil, after placing the Bio-cells valued at Rs.3,960,000, the cells had been
cracked and therefore these had to be removed and the sewerage system had to be constructed again. Accordingly, the
above payment had become a fruitless expenditure.

(iii) According to the Report No J of the works, the Aluminum Frames used for windows were substandard. Therefore, it
could not be satisfied about the durability of the windows not made up to the specifications, though a sum of
Rs.10,850,918 had been spent.

(iv) According to the estimates and the plans, 58,900 cwts of iron was required for the concrete slab  and a sum of Rs.5,296,560
had been provided for the same. But, according to the vouchers, payments amounting to Rs.9,363,106 had been made
for 93,011 cwts of iron. The payment in excess of the estimate was Rs. 4,066,546. However, only 83,763kgs. of iron
had been used for 17 items of work, whereas the estimated quantity of iron required for these works was 125,476kgs.
It was observed that this situation will be badly affected the strength of the building.

3.2.3 Management Inefficiencies

The following management inefficiencies were observed :

(a) The legal ownership had not been obtained in respect of the lands at Polgolla, Dodangolla and Maha Illuppallama which
had been used by the University for over a long period,

(b) According to the lease agreement entered into with the People’s Bank on 18th March 1982, the annual lease rent should
be revised. But, without taking action accordingly, annual lease rent of Rs.300 had continued to be recovered since 1982,

(c) Although and injunction had been issued in terms of Section 120(a) of the Universities Act, No.16 of 1978 and Section 3
of the Re-vesting the Ownership of the Government Lands, Act No.07 of 1979, this injunction had not been implemented
from 2003 to the year under review,

(d) Salaries amounting to Rs.231,469 paid to an officer who had obtained no pay leave from year 1997 to 2003 had not been
recovered even as at 31st December 2007 and had been shown in the financial statement as a balance recoverable,

(e) A sum of Rs.486,312 had been paid to a lecturer for preparation of designs for University buildings even though  Engineering
Services and Consultancy Services Centre had been established under the Faculty of Engineering for providing consultancy
services for the University of Peradeniya. However, due to the defects in the above designs, the designing had been entrusted
again to the State Engineering Corporation and a payment of Rs.345,000 had been paid to the Corporation. Therefore, the
payment of Rs.486,312 made to the lecturer had become fruitless,

(f) Although equipment purchased for projects should be handed over to the University, immediate after the completion of
the projects, equipment to the value of Rs.815,154 purchased for 04 projects of which the research activities had been
completed during the years 2005, 2006 and 2007 had not been handed over to the University even as at 31st  December
2007,

(g) Tenders had been called for, the purchase of beds and cupboards for the new hostel and the recommendation of the Technical
Evaluation Committee also had been obtained for the lowest tender submitted. However, the tender had been awarded to
the highest tenderer without producing valid reasons for rejecting the lowest tender. As a result the University had to suffer
a loss of Rs.5,805,035. Further, the beds supplied by the tender had to be improved by spending the provisions of the
University as the beds were defective and could not be used.

3.2.4 Idle and Underutilized Assets

The following observations are made :-
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(a) The Earth Quake Detecting Equipment valued at Japanese Yens 39,854,123 (S. L. Rs.30 Million approximately) granted
by the Japan International Co-operation Agency to the Government of Sri Lanka in November 2002 had been installed in
April 2003. However, this had not been in operating condition even as at 31 December 2007 due to the defects in the computer
and telephone system of the equipment,

(b) Balances of 66 Other Fund  Accounts amounting to Rs.7,852,415 had remained idle for periods ranging 02 to 04 years, whilst
balances of 27 accounts amounting to Rs.1,589,824 had remained idle for over 05 years,

(c) Balances of 30 External Research Accounts amounting to Rs.4,632,767 had remained idle for periods ranging 02 to 03 years,
whilst balances of 15 accounts amounting Rs.675,763 had remained idle for over 05 years.

3.2.5 Corporate Plan

A corporate Plan including the vision and the objectives of the University for not less than 03 years including the year under
review, had not been prepared in terms of paragraph 5.1 of the Circular No.PED 12 dated 02 June 2003 of the Director General
of Public Enterprises and the Council also had not paid attention to prepare and implement such plan.

3.2.6 Internal Audit

According to the approved cadre of the Internal Audit Division of the University 02 vacancies for Audit Assistants had not
been filled since year 2004. By half yearly Reports and Final Progress Reports on internal audit activities that should be submitted
to the Auditor General had not been submitted and therefore, the performance of Internal Audit Division could not be evaluated.

3.2.7 Budgetary Control

Significant variations were observed at a comparison of estimated income and expenditure for the year under review with the
actual income and expenditure thus indicating that the budget had not been made use of as an effective instrument of management
control.

4. Systems and Controls

Deficiencies of Systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought to the notice of the Vice-chancellor of the
University from time to time Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control :

(a) Receipt of income and accounting for income,
(b) Purchases,
(c) Contract administration,
(d) Advances,
(e) Fixed assests,
(f) Stocks and inventory control,

(g) Control over vehicles,
(h) Maintenance of registers,
(i) Conducting researches,
(j) Works in progress,

(k) Maintenance of ledger accounts.

S. SWARNAJOTHI,
Auditor General.

05-446
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices

PEOPLE’S  BANK—JA-ELA BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2009.

“Whereas Maha Vidanelage Priyankara Niroshan de Mel has
made default in payment  due on the Bond No. 13109 dated
20.12.2007 attested by S. P. L. Wijesiriwardena Notary Public
of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Million
Four Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand Nine Hundred and
Twenty-nine and cents Eighty-nine (Rs.1,424,929.89) on the
said Bond. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under
the powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of
1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by
the said Bond No. 13109 sold by Public Auction by Schokman
and Samarawickrema, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for
recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Million Four Hundred
and Twenty-four Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty-nine and
Cents Eighty-nine (Rs.1,424,929.89) and with further interest of
Rupees One Million Four Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand
Nine Hundred and Twenty-nine and cents Eighty-nine
(Rs.1,424,929.89) at 23% per annum from 04.08.2008 to date of
sale and costs of sale and moneys recoverable under Section
“29L” of the said People’s Bank Act less payments (if any) since
received”.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 44
depicted in Plan No. Mu. P. Gam. 1684 dated 24.10.1991 made by
Surveyor General of the land called Crooswatta alias Mahawatte
situated at Ekala Kurunduwatta in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
(South)  in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and bounded
on the  North by Lot 43, East by Lot 45, South by Lot 61, West by
Lot 105 and containing in extent Nought Decimal Nought Two Six
Seven Hectare (0.0267H.) together with the soil, trees, plantations,
buildings and everything esle standing thereon and registered under
B 105/235 at the Land Registry of Negombo.

 Together with right of way in, over and along (road reservation)
depicted in the said Plan.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-394

PEOPLE’S    BANK—OLCOTT    MAWATHA   BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.05.2008:

“Whereas Mr. Yapa Mudiyanselage Tharaka Muditha
Sandaruwan has made default in the payment due on Mortgage
Bond No. 3629 attested by Mrs. Mirissage Nandani Perera,
Notary Public of Colombo on 07.02.2006 in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees One Million Four Hundred and Fifty-four
Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-four and cents Sixty-six
(Rs1,454,764.66) on the said Bond No. 3629. The Board of
Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested in them
by the People’s Bank Act, No.29 as amended by the Act, No.32
of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond No.3629
attested by Mrs. Mirissage Nandani Perera, Notary Public of
Colombo on 07.02.2006 be sold by Public Auction by Ranjitha
S.Mahanama, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery
of the said sum of Rupees One Million Four Hundred and
Fifty -four thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty-four and cents
Sixty-six (1,454,764.66) together with further interest thereon at
the rate of 16.5% per annum from 15.03.2007 to the date of sale,
cost of sale and moneys recoverable under Section “29L” of the
People’s Bank Act less payments (if any) since received”.

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No.23
depicted in Plan No. 217/88 made and divided by D. C. Kotalawela,
Licensed Surveyor on 22.11.1988.12.12.1988 respectively of the
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portion of the land called and known as Nagahawatta situated at in
the village of Parakandeniya, Meda Pattu Siyane Korale in the
District of Gampaha, Western Province and bounded on the North
by Lot No.20 (Roadway), East by Lot No.22, South by the property
claimed by P. A. Somadasa, West by Lot No.24 containing in extent
Fifteen decimal Three Four perches (0A., 0R., 15.34P) together with
the buildings, trees and plantations standing thereon.

(The said property is Registered at A 597/70 at the Land Registry,
Gampaha).

All that allotment of divided and defined allotment of Marked Lot
20 and depicted in Plan No. 217/88 made and divided by D. C.
Kotalawala, Licensed Surveyor on 22.11.1988 and 12.12.1988
respectively of the portion of the land called and known as Nagahawatte
situated at Parakandeniya as aforesaid being a road reservation.
Which said allotment of land is bounded on the North by by Lot
Nos. 13, 15, 16, 17 18 and 19, East by Land claimed by S.
Sumathipala, V. C. Road and Lot Nos. 26 and 27, South by Lot Nos.
21, 22, 23, 24, 25and 26 and land claimed by Y. D. Seeman Singho
and West by Lot No. 21 and the land claimed by Y. D. Sirisena
containing in extent twenty nine decimal four nine perches
(0A., 0R., 29.49P) together with the right of use and entitlement over
the road reservation. (The said property is registered at the Land
Registry, Gampaha under 711/212)

By order of the Board of Directors,

REGIONAL MANAGER,
(WESTERN ZONE 01).

05-387

PEOPLE’S BANK - JA-ELA BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2007.

Whereas Jayasinghe Arachchilage Ranjith Rathnayake has
made default in payment due on the Bond No. 13333 dated
08.04.2008 attested by S. P. L. Wijesiriwardena, Notary Public
of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Three Million
Four Hundred Sixty-five Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety -
eight and Cents Forty (Rs.3,465,498.40) on the said Bond. The
Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested
in them by the  People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act, No.32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property
and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond No.
13333 be sold by Public Auction by Schokman and
Samarawickrema, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery
of the said sum of Rupees Three Million Four Hundred Sixty-five

Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety-eight and cents Forty
(Rs.3,465,498.40) and with further interest of Rupees Three
Million Four Hundred Sixty-five Thousand Four Hundred and
Ninety-eight and cents Forty (Rs.3,465,498.40) at 23% per
annum from 11.08.2008, to date of sale and costs of  moneys
recoverable under Section “29L” of the said People’s Bank Act,
Less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot E
depicted in Plan No.4666 dated 10.09.1996 made by K. E. J. B.
Perera, L. S. of the land called jositawatta situated at Ekala
Kurunduwatta Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Ja-Ela
Dandugama Sub Office in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the
District of Gampaha Western Province and bounded on the North
by portion of Lot 03 of G. U. Silva and G. S. Silva and land of
K. Sharnika Perera, East by remaining portion of Lot 03 of  K. Ranjani
De Silva, South by road 12ft. wide, West by Lot D of the same land
and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P) together with
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing
thereon and registered under B 211/49 at the Land Registry of
Negombo.

Together with right of way over and along (road reservation)
depicted in the said Plan.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-395

PEOPLE’S  BANK - WATTALA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 20.01.2005.

Whereas Athukorala Kankanamalage Padmini alias Nawalage
Dona Padmini Perera and Wasala Thanthrige Ranjith Tiador
Perera have made default in payment due on the Bond No. 6260
dated 17.08.2001 attested by S. P. L. wijesiriwardena Notary
Public of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there is
now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Two
Hundred and Eighty-five Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety
-seven and cents Nineteen (Rs.285,797.19) on the said bond. The
Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested
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in them by  the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property
and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond
No. 5839 be sold by Public Auction by E. S. Ramanayake,
Licensed Auctioneer of Gampaha for recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Two Hundred and Eighty-five Thousand Seven Hundred
and Ninety-seven and cents Nineteen (Rs.285,797.19) with
further interest on Rupees Two Hundred and Eighty-five
Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety-seven and cents Nineteen
(Rs.285,797.19) at 26% per annum from 12.12.2002 to date of
sale and costs of sale and moneys recoverable under Section
“29L” of the said People’s Bank Act. less payments (if any) since
received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B
depicted in Plan No. 2530 dated 04.10.1996 made by W. B. L.
Fernando, L. S. of the land called Madaoluwawe Gorakagahawatte,
situated at Kerawalapitiya in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
(South) in the District of Gampaha Western Province and bounded
on the North by land of R. M. Silva, East by road, South by Lot E
and West by Lot A and containing in extent Eight Perches
(0A., 0R., 8P) together with soil, trees, buildings and everything else
standing thereon. Registered in B 805/236 in the land Registry,
Colombo.

By Order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-384

PEOPLE’S    BANK—GALLE   MAIN   STREET

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 28.11.2008.

“Whereas  Uberathna Wadu Acharige Janath has made default
in payment due on the Bond No. 1357 dated 21.07.2006 attested
by M. G. C Aroshini, Notary Public of Galle, in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Thousand only (Rs.200,000)
on the said Bond. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank
under the powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act,

No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby
resolve that the property and premises mortgage to the said Bank
by the said Bond No. 1357 be sold by Public Auction by G. P.
Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the sum of Rupees
Two Hundred Thousand Only (Rs.200,000) with further interest
on Rupees Two Hundred Thousand only (Rs.200,000) at 21.5%
per centum per annum from 01.06.2007 to date of sale and costs
and moneys recoverable under Section “29L” of the said People’s
Bank Act less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 74 of
the land called Central Park, together with the buildings, trees,
plantations and everything else standing thereon, situated at Meepe
in Talpe Pattu of Galle District, Southern Province and which said
Lot 74 is bounded on the North-East by Road Reservation marked
Lot 57 (20 feet access), on the South-East by Lot 89 of the same land,
on the South-West by TP 180107 and on the North -West by Lot
73 of the same land and containing in extent Ten decimal Seven One
Perches (0A., 0R., 10.71P) as per Plan No. 348/2003 dated 15th June
2003 made by K. Siriwardena, Licensed Surveyor and registered
under D 904/70 at Galle District Land Registry.

According to the recent surveyor the above land described as
follows :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 74 of
the land called Central Park, together with the buildings, trees,
plantations and everything else standing thereon, situated at Meepe
in Talpe Pattu of Galle District, Southern Province and which said
Lot 74 is bounded on the North -East by Road Reservation Marked
Lot 57 (20 feet access), on the South - East by Lot 89 of the same
land, on the South - West by TP 180107 and on the North - West
by Lot 73 of the same land and containing in extent Ten decimal Seven
One Perches(0A., 0R., 10.71P) as per Plan No.817/2005 dated 2nd
December 2002 made by K. Siriwardena, Licensed Surveyor, Together
with the right of way : Together with all that the full free and
undisturbed right leave liberty and license of ingress egress regress
passage and way and right to erect lay down and install electricity
water services overhead underground and other mains in along under
and over Road Reservation marked Lots 13, 47, 52, 57,129 and 130
shown in Plan No.348/2003 and Road Reservation marked Lot 3 in
Plan No.217/2003.

By Order of the Board of Directors.

REGIONAL MANAGER,
GALLE

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

05-388
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PEOPLE’S   BANK—GALLE   FORT  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s Bank Act,  No.29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No.32 of 1986 at there meeting held on 24.10.2008.

Whereas Gihan Prasad Vidyalankara has made default in
payment due on the Bond No. 967 dated 09.02.2006 attested by
M. G. C. Aroshini, Notary Public of Galle, in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Two Million Eight Hundred and Fifty-six
Thousand Four Hundred Ten and cents Thirty-three
(Rs.2,856,410.33) on the said Bond. The Board of Directors of
the People’s Bank under the powers vested in them by the
People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgage to the said Bank by the said Bond No. 967 be sold by
Public Auction by G. P. Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer for
recovery of the sum of Rupees Two Million Eight Hundred and
Fifty-six Thousand Four Hundred Ten and cents Thirty-three
(Rs.2,856,410.33) with further interest on Rupees Two Million
Eight Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Four Hundred Ten and
cents Thirty-three (Rs.2,856,410.33) at 16.5% per centum per
annum from 10.04.2008 to date of sale and costs and moneys
recoverable under section “29L” of the said People’s Bank Act
less payments (if any) since recevied.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 5B of
Lot 5 depicted in Plan No. 3677 dated 31.10.1989 made by W. A.
Garvin de Silva, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Dekenpangu
Illuketiyewatta alias Punchiwatta Lot 1 of Bakmeegahawatta alias
Heldaragewatta and Lots 10 and 11 of Kankanamgewatta, siutated
at Unawatuna in Talpe Pattu, Galle District, Southern Province and
which said Lot 5B is bounded on the North by Lot 5A and Lot 5C of
the same land, on the East by Lot 6 of the same land, on the South
by Main Road to Talpe and on the West by Lot 4 of the same land
and containing in extent Twelve decimal Six Perches (0A., 0R.,
12.6P) according to the said Plan No.3677, together with the
buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon and
registered under D 892/207 at the Land Registry, Galle.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.22, Lower Dickson Road, Galle.

05-386

PEOPLE’S    BANK —DANKOTUWA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27th June 2008.

Default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 5839 dated
02.11.2007 attested by Mrs. Ruwini A. S. Dassanayake, Notary
Public of Marawila, Mary Niranjala Peter and Alponso Russell
Lambert, have defaulted in payment, and owing to the said
People’s Bank under the said bond a sum of Rupees Seven Million
Five Hundred and Eighty Three Thousand Three Hundred and
Thirty Three and Cents Thirty Four (Rs.7,583,333.34). The
Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested
by Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as
amended by Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond No. 5839 be sold by Public Auction by
Mr. W. P. C. Perera, Licensed Auctioneer of Negombo for
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred
and Eighty-three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-three and
cents Thirty-four (Rs.7,583,333.34) with further interest on
Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand
Three Hundred and Thirty-three and cents Thirty-four
(Rs.7,583,333.34) at 24% per annum from 05.02.2008, up to date
of sale with interest and the sum of money due under Section
“29L” and other charges less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY/PROPERTIES
MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted as Lot
Nos. 53 and 54 amalgamated in Plan No.4090, surveyed and prepared
on 03.03.1999 by Mr. W. S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor, for the land
called “Pallanchena Estate or Pallanchena Farm North”, situated in
the Village called Kattuwa, in Dunagaha Pattu, in Aluthkuru Korale,
within the Negombo Land Registrar’s Division of Gampaha District
- Western Province is bounded as follows :-

North by Lot No. 42 in the above Plan, East by Baseline Road,
South by a road of 9.0 metres width depicted as Lot No.55 in the
above Plan, West by Lot No. 56 and 52 in the above Plan. Located
within the above boundaries containing extent of Naught Acre
Naught Rood Twenty Six Decimal Five Naught Perches (0A., 0R.,
26.50P) alias Naught Decimal Naught Six Seven Naught Three
Hectare (0.06703 Hect.) of land, together with the soil, trees,
plantation, buildings, and everything else standing thereon.

This land is registered at the Negombo Land Registry under No.
A 960/45.

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted as lot
No.55 in Plan No.4090, surveyed and prepared on 03.03.1999 by
Mr. W. S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor, for the land called
“Pallanchena Estate or Pallanchena Farm North” situated in the
above Village called Kattuwa, is bounded as follows :-
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North by Lot Nos. 20, 60, 59, 23, 58, 57, 13, 56 and 54 in the above
Plan, East by Baseline Road, South by Lot Nos.72, 71, 70, 69, 68,
67, 66, 65, 64 and 62, 52 in the above Plan, West by Lot No.61 in
the above Plan. Located within the above boundaries containing an
extent of Naught Acre One Rood Seventeen Decimal Seven Five
Perches  (0A., 01R., 17.75P) of land This land is registered at the
Negombo Land Registry under No. A 1007/14.

Regional Manager,
Chilaw.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office - Chilaw,
No.79, Marawila Road,
Nattandiya.

05-392

BANK   OF   CEYLON—WELPALLA   BRANCH

Notice published under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act, No. 34 of

1968 and Law No. 10 of 1974

AT a meeting held on  22.01.2009 the Board of Directors of the Bank
of Ceylon resolved specially and unanimously.

1. A sum of Rupees One Million Three Hundred and
Twenty -three Thousand Two Hundred and Sixteen and cents
Seventy -six only (Rs.1,323,216.76) is due from Mr. Ratnayake
Mudiyanselage Sunil Rathnayake of Uthurawala,
Welipannagahamulla, on account of principal and interest up
to 23.12.2008 together with interest on Rupees One Million
One Hundred and Eighty-five Thousand Two Hundred and
Ninety-five and cents Forty-three only (Rs.1,185,295.43) at
the rate of 25.72% per annum from 24.12.2008 till date of
payment on Mortgage Bond No. 7816 dated 07.05.2007
attested by P. D. E. Fernando, Notary Public.

2. In terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance
(Chapter 397) and its amendments Mr. J. Alpheus Perera, the
Auctioneer of No.56, Pannala Road, Kuliyapitiya be and is
hereby authorised and empowered to sell the mortgaged
property covered by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 7816
by Public Auction for the recovery of the sums referred to in
“1” above together with further interest thereon as aforesaid
up to date of sale and the costs and monies recoverable under
Section 26 of the said Ordinance.

THE SCHEDULE ABOVE REFERRED TO

All that divided and defined Lot 1 of land called Imbulgahawatta
situated at Madithiyawala in Yatigaha Pattu of Hapitigam Korale
within the registration division of Negombo in the District of
Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 1 is depicted in Plan
No. 632 dated 22nd September 1997 made by K. Kannangara,
Licensed Surveyor and bounded on the North by remaining portion

of Imbulgahawatta of M. A. Rosalin Nona and others East by
Pradeshiya Sabha Road, South by Lot 2 and on the West by Lot 5
of the same land of B. A. Wijerathne and containing in extent One
Rood and Twenty Nine Perches (0A., 01R., 29P) together with
everything standing thereon. Registered in D 282/253 at the land
Registry, Negombo.

By Order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Ceylon.

Mr. G. A. C. RATNAJEE,
Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,

05-368

PV 6237.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off  the Name of
Ceylon Trains (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is a reasonable cause to believe that, Ceylon Trains
(Private) Limited a Company incorporated on 07th April, 2004,
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982   is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the  Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of Ceylon Trains (Private)
Limited, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the
Register of Companies kept in this office and company will be
dissolved.

Registrar General of Companies.

Department of the Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
4th May, 2009.

05-438

PV 4987.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off  the Name of
Smart Research (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is a reasonable cause to believe that Smart Research
(Private) Limited, a Company incorporated on 06th December, 2003
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982   is not
carrying on business or in operation.
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Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the Companies
Act,  No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of Smart Research (Private)
Limited, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the
Register of Companies kept in this office and company will be
dissolved.

Registrar General of Companies.

Department of the Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
04th May, 2009.

05-439

PV 7479.

COMPANIES ACT, NO. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off  the Name of
Dutch Lanka Properties (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is a reasonable cause to believe that, Dutch Lanka
Properties (Private) Limited a Company incorporated on 02nd May,
2003, under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of Dutch Lanka Properties
(Private) Limited, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and company
will be dissolved.

Registrar General of Companies.

Department of the Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
4th May, 2009.

05-440

PV 474.

COMPANIES ACT, NO. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off  the Name of
A S I Shipping and Logistics (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is a reasonable cause to believe that, ASI Shipping
and Logistics (Private) Limited a Company incorporated on 28th
April, 2005, under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of
1982   is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of A S I Shipping and Logistics
(Private) Limited, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and company
will be dissolved.

Registrar General of Companies.

Department of the Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
4th May, 2009.

05-441

PEOPLE’S     BANK—JA-ELA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29 D  of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961  As  Amended by the Act, No. 32  of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the  following   resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board   of Directors of the   People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s  Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961  as amended by the
Act No. 32  of  1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2009.

Whereas Wijesinghege Ashoka Senerath Ananda has made
default in payment due on the Bond No. 12770 dated 11.09.2007
attested by S. P. L. Wijesiriwardena   Notary Public of Gampaha
in favour of the People’s  Bank and there is now  due and owing
to the  People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Two Million Four
Hundred and  Twenty-one Thousand Two Hundred and One and
cents Ninety-four   (Rs. 2,421,201.94) on  the   said Bonds. The
Board of Directors of the  People’s Bank under the powers vested
in them by the People’s  Bank Act, No. 29  of 1961  as amended
by the Act,  No. 32  of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property
and premises mortgaged to the said bank  by  the  said  Bond
No. 12770  be sold by Public  Auction by Schokman and
Samarawicrema, Licensed  Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery
of the said sum of Rupees Two Million Four  Hundred and
Twenty-one  Thousand Two  Hundred and One and cents
Ninety -four  (Rs. 2,421,201.94)  and with further  interest of
Rupees Two Million Four  Hundred and Twenty-one Thousand
Two Hundred and One and cents Ninety-four  (Rs. 2,421,201.94)
at  22% per annum from  13.07.2008 to date of sale and costs  of
sale  and moneys recoverable under section “29L” of the said
People’s Bank  Act less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE  PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that  divided and defined allotment of land  marked Lot  17
depicted in Plan  No. 3802A dated   01.12.2005  made by M. D.
Edward , L. S.  of the land called Delgahawatta and  Kahatagahalanda,
Kahatagahalanda   alias Gonnagahalanda alias   Gorakagahalanda
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situated at Yagodamulla   within the Pradeshiya Sabha  Limits of
Minuwangoda   in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale  in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and bounded on the North by Lot
11/3861, East by Lot  18, South by property of Alupab Co. Ltd.,
West by Lot  16 and  containing in extent  Ten Perches  (0A.  0R.10P.)
or  0.02529 Hectare together  with  the soil, trees, plantations,
buildings and everything   else  standing  thereon and registered under
C 899/260  at the  Land  Registry  of Negombo.

Together with  right of way  in over  and along road  reservation.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head  Office,
No. 131,  Kandy  Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-397

PEOPLE’S    BANK—JA-ELA    BRANCH

Resolution under section 29 D  of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961  As  Amended by the Act, No. 32  of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the  following   resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board   of Directors of the   People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s  Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961  as amended by the
Act, No. 32  of  1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2009.

Whereas Rajapaksa Appuhamilage Jeyaraj Perera and Pathmari
Lana Perera have made  default in payment due on the Bond
No. 2847 dated 23.01.2006  attested by V. A. de Silva  Notary
Public of Colombo in favour of the People’s  Bank and there is
now  due and owing to the  People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One
Million  Five  Hundred Fifty-six  Thousand and  Nine and cents
Thirteen (Rs.  1,556, 009.13) on  the   said Bond. The Board of
Directors of the  People’s Bank under the powers vested in them
by the People’s  Bank Act,  No. 29  of 1961  as amended by the
Act, No. 32  of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgaged to the said bank  by  the  said  Bond  No. 2847
be sold by Public  Auction by Schokman and Samarawicrema,
Licensed  Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum
on Rupees one Million Five  Hundred  Fifty-six Thousand and
Nine and cents Thirteen (Rs. 1,556,009.13) and with further
interest on Rupees One Million Five  Hundred Fifty-six  Thousand
and Nine  and  cents Thirteen (Rs.  1,556,009.13) at 16.5% per
annum from  28.10.2008 to date of sale and costs  of sale  and
moneys recoverable under section “29L” of the said  People’s
Bank  Act less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE  PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that  divided and defined allotment of land  marked Lot  10
depicted in Plan  No. 3623A dated   04.02.2005  made by M. D.

Edward , Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kanuwanawatta alias
Moraeswatta alias  Horncastle Estate situated at Ekala Kurunduwatta
Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha  Limits of Ja – Ela  in Ragam Pattu
of Aluthkuru Korale  in the District of Gampaha, Western Province
and bounded on the   North  by Lot 09,  East by road,  South by Lot
11, West by Lots  26  and 27 and containing in extent  Ten Perches
(0A  0R  10P)  together with  the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything   else  standing  thereon and registered under
B  192/237  at the  Land  Registry  of Negombo.

Together with  right of way  in, over  and along (road  reservation)
depicted in the  said  plan.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head  Office,
No. 131,  Kandy  Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-396

LE/RE/201

HOUSING     DEVELOPMENT    FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF   SRI   LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0200003373.

WHEREAS Hikkaduwage Nalanie Swarnaseeli & Gurubabilage
Prageeth Suranjith have  made default in payment due on the Bond
No. 700 dated 11.07.2006 attested by M. Wanniarachchie, Notary
Public of Gampaha in favour of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act,
No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (herein after referred as ‘the Bank’) and a sum
of Rupees Six Hunderd Forty Two Thousand & Two Hundred
Seventy-two & cents Sixty-nine (Rs. 642,272.69) is due and owing
to the Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri
Lanka, as at 30.09.2007, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank, of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of November, 2007 that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto and mortgaged under the said Bond, to Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by Public
Auction by W.M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for
recovery of monies mentioned hereunder.
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1. Rupees Five Hundred Ninety One Thousand & Sixty One &
Cents Sixty Eight (Rs.591,061.68) being the total unpaid
portion of the said  loan, together with the interest in a sum
of Rupees Fifty one Thousand & Two Hundred Eleven &
Cents One (Rs.51,211.01) due as at 30.09.2007 totaling to
Rupees Six Hundred Fourty Two Thousand & Two Hundred
Seventy Two & Cents Sixty Nine (Rs. 642,272.69)

2. Further interest at the rate of 14.90% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Five Hundred Ninety One Thousand &
Sixty-one & cents Sixty-eight (Rs.591,061.68) from
01.10.2007 up to the date of auction (Both dates inclusive.)

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A2 in
Plan No. 76/1996 dated 07.03.1996 made by S. Samarawickrama
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Siyambalagahawatta bearing
Assessment No. 12/42, Bandaranayake Mawatha, situated at
Hunupitiya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kelaniya in
Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale, Gampaha District Western Province
is bounded on the North-East by Road, on the South-East by land
now of Mrs. J.U. Kaldum, on the South-West by Lot A1 and on the
North-West by Lot A1 and containing in extent eight Decimal Four
Eight perches (A.0,R.0,P.8.48) together with the house, buildings,
trees, plantaions & everything else standing thereon and Registered
in C 582/288 at the Colombo Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

05-433

LE/RE/201.

HOUSING     DEVELOPMENT      FINANCE
CORPORATION     BANK     OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under section 4 of Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No : 0205500250

WHEREAS Wannakuwatta Waduge Randika Chandramal Fernando
has made default in payment due on the Bond No. 2877 dated
19.08.2004 attested by W.L.F. Chandrasekara Notary Public of
Gampaha in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka. duly established under the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997

amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation Act,
No. 15 of 2003. (herein after refeerred as the Bank) and a sum of
Rupees Four Hundred Twenty-two Thousand & Eight Hundred
Fifty-one & cents Twenty (Rs. 422,851.20) is due and owing to the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as
at 30.09.2007, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank, of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 30th day of October 2007 that the property
and premises more  fully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond, to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W.M. Wickramaratna Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Three Hundred Eighty  Six Thousand & Seven
Hundred Eighty Two & Cents ninety Five (Rs. 386,782.95)
being the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with
the interest in a sum of Rupees Thirty Six Thousand & Sixty
-eight & cents Twenty-five (Rs. 36,068.25) due as at
30.09.2007 totaling to Rupees Four Hundred Twenty-two
Thousand & Eight Hundred Fifty-one & cents Twenty
(Rs.422,851.20).

2. Further interest at the rate of 12.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Three Hundred Eighty-six Thousand &
Seven Hundred Eighty-two & cents Ninety-five
(Rs.386,782.95) from 01.10.2007 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive.)

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 9
depicted in Plan No. 9122 dated 22.04.2003 made by L. J. Liyanage
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Hikgahawatta &
Gorakagahadeniya now called Aluthgedarawatta situated at
Nedungamuwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha sub-
office Henarathgoda in Meda Pattu of Siyane Korale, Gampaha
District Western Province is bounded on the North by Lot A41 in
Plan No. 5177D made by L.J. Liyanage Licensed Surveyor, on the
East by Pradeshiya Sabha Road, South by Lot 10 of this Plan and,
on the West by Lot 5 of this land of Janet Mary Silva Perera and
containing in extent Twenty Two Perches (A.0, R.0, P22) together
with the house, buildings, trees, Plantations and everything else
standing thereon and Registered in E720/210 at the Gampaha Land
Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

05-432
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LE/RE/201.

HOUSING     DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION     BANK    OF    SRI   LANKA

Resolution under section 4 of Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No : 0400000921.

WHEREAS Edarutenne Gedara Jamaldeen Manzeel & Mohammed
Amjar Farisa Umma has made default in payment due on the Bond
No: 17038 dated 16.06.1998 attested by M. A. ABUSALI Notary
Public of Kandy in favour of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act,
No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (herein after referred as “the Bank”) and a sum
of Rupees One Hundred Sixty  Thousand & Three Hundred Fifty
-five & cents  Twenty-seven (Rs. 160,355.27) is due and owing to
the Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka,
as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank, of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond, to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by I.W.
Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of monies mentioned
hereunder.

1. Rupees One Hundred Twenty Six Thousand & Eight Hundred
Seventy Nine & Cents Twenty One (Rs.126,879.21) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Thirty Three Thousand & Four
Hundred Seventy Six & cents Six (Rs.33,476.06) due as at
31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees One Hundred Sixty Thousand
& Three Hundred Fifty-five & cents Twenty-seven
(Rs.160,355.27).

2. Further interest at the rate of 18.00% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees One Hundred Twenty-six Thousand &
Eight Hundred Seventy-nine & cents Twenty-one
(Rs. 126,879.21) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive.)

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defind  allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 884 dated 3rd September, 1997 made by K. K.
Kanagasabai Licensed Surveyer of the land called Mahawatta situated
at Galagedara within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Thumpane in

Udapalatha Korale of Tumpane in the District of Kandy, Central
Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by means
of access, on the East by Road (V.C.) on the South by Land claimed
by Nursa, on the West by Land claimed by Fathima Sulfiya and
containing in extent Seven Decimal Five Two perches (A.0,R.0,P.7.52)
together with the plantaions, Buildings and everything standing
thereon and according to the said Plan No. 884 and Registered in K
323/66 at the Kandy Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors.

General Manager.

05-430

PEOPLE’S BANK - HIKKADUWA

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.08.2008 Whereas
Nadeera Abeyweera Gunawardena and Thiranagama Gamage Sunil
Pushpa Kumara have made default in payment due on the Bond
No.676 dated 23.05.2006 attested by Ajantha Kapugamage, Notary
Public of Galle, in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Four Hundred and
Twenty five Thousand and cents six (Rs. 425,000.06) on the said
Bond. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers
vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgage to the said Bank by the said Bond No. 676 be sold
by Public Auction by G. P. Ananda, Licesed Auctioneer for recovery
of the sum of Rupees Four Hundred and Twenty-five Thousand and
cents Six (Rs. 425,000.06) with further interest on Rupees Four
Hundred and Twenty-five Thousand and cents Six (Rs. 425,000.06)
at 16.75% per centum per annum from 08.01.2008 to date of sale and
costs and moneys recoverable under section “29L” of the said
People’s Bank Act less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B6 of
Lot B depicted in Plan No.535 dated 13.02.1992 made by A. N. W.
Liyanage, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Weli Liyadda,
situated at Wewala in Hikkaduwa Wellaboda Pattu of Galle District
Southern Province and which said Lot B6 is bounded on the North
by Podduwage Wela, on the East by Lot V. C. Road and on the South
by Lot B5 and on the West by Lot B5 and containing in extent Fifteen
Perches (0A, 0R, 15P) according to the said Plan No. 535, together
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with the buildings, trees, plantatons and everything else standing
thereon and registered under C 724/49 at the Land Registry, Galle.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

05-390

PEOPLE’S BANK — MID CITY

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on

Whereas, Indikatiya Hewage Robert and Indikatiya Hewage
Chathuranga Roshan have made default in payment due on
Mortgage Bond No. 3386 dated 12.05.2008 attested by A. D. R.
Mendis Notary Public Colombo, in favour of the People’s Bank
and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of
Rs. 9,954,991.39 (Rupees Nine Million Nine hundred and Fifty
-four thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-one and cents Thirty
-nine only) on the said Bond No. 3386. The Board of Directors
of the People’s Bank under the powes vested in them by the
People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond No. 3386
be sold by Public Auctio by E. S. Ramanayake Licensed Auctioneer
of Colombo for recovery of the sum of  Rupees Nine Million Nine
Hundred and Fifty-four Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-
one and cents Thirty-nine only (Rs 9,954.991.39) together with
further interest on Rupees Nine Million Nine Hundred and Fifty
-four thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-one and cents Thirty
-nine only (Rs.9,954,991.39) at the rate of 24%  (Twenty four
percent) per annum from 11.09.2008 to date of sale with costs
and other charges of sale less payment (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot
No. A2” depicted in Plan No. 3677 dated 05th day of September,
1992 made by A. E. Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
and known as “Gorakagahawatta”, situated at Talangama South,
within the D. D. C. of Colombo, Battaramulla Talangama Unit in
Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo, Western
Province and which said Lot A2 is bounded on the North by land of
D. D. Weragala, on the East by Lot B in Plan No. 1900, on the South

by Lot A3 and A5, and on the West by Lot A1 and containing in extent
Six Perches (0A.,0R.,6P.) together with buildings, plantations and
everything else standing thereon, and Registered under G1411/46 at
the Land Registry, of Homagama.

All that divided and defind allotment of land marked as “Lot A3”
depicted in Plan No. 3677 dated 05th day of September, 1992
aforesaid of the land called and known as Gorakagahawatta, situated
at Talangama South aforesaid and which said Lot A3 is bouned on
the North by Lot A2, on the East by Lot B in Plan No. 1900, on the
South by Lot 5 & Lot 11 in Plan No. 1900, and on the West by Lot
A5, and containing in extent Six Perches (0A.,0R.,6P.) together with
buildings, plantations and everything else standing thereon, and
Registered under G 1663/190 at the Land Registry of Homagama.

The above mentioned Lot A2 & Lot A3 according to the recent
survey together bounded as follows:

All that divided and defind allotment of amalgamated land marked
Lot A2 and A3 depicted in Plan No. 307/2006 dated 10th day of
August, 2006 (surveyed on 08th day of August, 2006) made by
K. B. K. P. Okadapola, Licensed Surveyor of the land called and
known as Gorakagahawatta, situated at Talangama South aforesaid
and which said land is bounded on the North by land of D. D.
Veragalage, on the East by Lot B in Plan No. 1900 dated 24.02.1964
made by P. A. H. Philiphaiya, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by
Lot H (Reservation for Road 08-10 feet wide) and Lot A5 in Plan No.
3677 dated 05.09.1992 made by A. E. Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor
and on the West by Lot A1 and A4 in Plan No. 3677 dated 05.09.1992
made by A. E. Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor and containing in
extent Twelve Perches (0A.,0R.,12P.) and Registered under G 1787/
32 at the Land Registry of Homagama.

Together with the Road Reservation over and along the “Lot H”
(8-10 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 1900 and Lot A5 depicted in
Plan No. 3677.

By Orders of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager.
(Colombo North)

People’s Bank,
Zonal Head Office - (Western Zone - 01)
No. 11, Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

05-391

HOUSING     DEVELOPMENT      FINANCE
CORPORATION     BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Loan No. : 0200003339.
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WHEREAS Pathiraja Liyanage Lakshman Kumara has made default
in payment due on the Bond No. 546 dated 15.05.2006 attested by
D. W. Wijesinghe Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of Housing
Development Fianance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly
established under the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing
Development Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter
referred to as “the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Six Hundred Fourty
Four Thousand and Seven Hundred Fifteen and cents Thirty One
(Rs. 644,715.31) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 30.06.2008, on the said
Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank, of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 12th day of August 2008 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond, to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratna, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
moneys mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Five Hundred Ninety-five Thousand and Three
Hundred Fifty-three and cents Sixty-eight (Rs. 595,353.68)
being the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with
the interest in a sum of Rupees Fourty-nine Thousand &
Three Hundred Sixty-one and cents Sixty-three (Rs. 49,361.63)
due as at 30.06.2008 totaling to Rupees Six Hundred Forty -
four Thousand and Seven Hundred Fifteen and cents Thirty
-one (Rs. 644,715.31)

2. Further interest at the rate of 14.90% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Five Hundred Ninety Five Thousand and
Three Hundred Fifty Three and cents Sixty-eight
(Rs. 595,353.68) from 01.07.2008 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 33
depicted in Plan No. 8419 dated 20.01.2003 made by Mervyn
Samaranayake, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Etambagahawatta
bearing Assessment No. 111/25, Hettiyadeniya Road, situated at
Yakkala Village within the Municipal Council Limits of Gampaha
(Yakkala Sub-Office) in Meda Pattu of Siyane Korale, in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 33 is bounded on
the North by Lot 52, on the East by Lots 34 and 32, on the South
by Lot 13 and, on the West by Lots 6 & 52 and containing in extent
Seven Decimal Five Perches (0A.,0R.,7.50P.) according to the said
Plan No. 8419 and together with the house, buildings, trees, plantations
and everything else standing thereon and Registered in G 44/57 at the
Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along Lots 13, 52 and
39-A (Road Reservation) in the said Plan No. 8419.

By the Order of the Board of Directors,

                                                                     General Manager.

05-431

PEOPLE’S BANK - POLONNARUWA TOWN (232)
BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.01.2009.

Whereas, Gallath Ralalage Dayananda have made default of
payment due on the mortgage Bond No. 32 dated 25.02.1999,
attested by Kumari Senevirathne Bandara, Notary Public of
Anuradhapura, in favour of the Peple’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Million One
Hundred and Eighty-seven Thousand Five Hundred
(Rs. 1,187,500) on the said Bond. The Board of Directors of the
People’s Bank under the power vested by the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986, do hereby
resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to the said
Bank by the said mortgage Bond No. 32 be sold by Public Auction
by Schokman & Samerawickreme, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy
for recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Million One Hundred
and Eighty-seven Thousand Five Hundred (Rs. 1,187,500) with
further interest on Rupees One Million One Hundred and Eighty-
seven Thousand Five Hundred (Rs. 1,187,500) at 21.5% per
annum from 01.07.2004 to date of sale and moneys recoverable
under Section ’29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act less payments
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

Allotment of Land called “24 Watta” Marked as Lot No. 78, in
Plan No. F. C. P. Po 35 made by Surveyor General and kept in his
custody situated at Wijayarajapura Village in 75A-Onegama Grama
Niladhari Division of Meda Pattu in Lankapura Divisional Secretaries
Division of Polonnaruwa District, North Central Province and
bounded on the, North by Lot No. 79, East by Lot No. 87, South by
Lot No. 77 2/2, West by Lot No. 39 And containing in extent Three
Acres One Rood Five Perches (03A. 01R. 05P.).

Above said Land Surveyed and divided by K. V. Somapala,
Licensed Surveyor and leveler as Lot No. 02 in Plan No. 2469 dated
14.07.1994, situated at Wijayarajapura Village in 75A-Onegama
Grama Niladhari Division of Meda Pattu in Lankapura Divisional
Secretaries Division of Polonnaruwa District, North Central Province
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and bounded on Lot No. 02, North by Lot No. 1 in aforesaid Plan
No. 2469 East by Lot No. 87 in Plan No. F. C. P. Po. 35; South by
Lot No. 77 2/2 in Plan No. F. C. P. Po. 35; West by Lot No. 39 in
Plan No. F. C. P. Po. 35 (Cart Road) and containing in extent One
Acre (01A. 0R. 0P.) together with plantations, buildings and
everything else standing thereon and it was registered at 1/3/6/162
in Polonnaruwa Land registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

P. C. WIJESUNDARA,
Regional Manager.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
New Town,
Polonnaruwa.

T. P. No. : 027-224404, 2225760, 2223900
Fax No. : 027-2223522
E-mail : pol@rho.peoplesbank.lk

05-389

DFCC   BANK

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank (formerly
known as Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon)

under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Nilantha Muthunayakage Priyantha of Anuradhapura
has made default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 145 dated
27th March, 2006 attested by Uthpalawanna Wijeratne, Notary
Public of Anuradhapura in favour of the DFCC Bank formerly
known as Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon. And
whereas there is as at 31st August, 2008 due and owing from the said
Mr. Nilantha Muthunayakage Priyantha to the DFCC Bank on the
aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 145 a sum of Rupees Two Hundred
and Eighty three Thousand and cents three (Rs. 283,000.03) together
with interest thereon from 1st September, 2008 to the date of sale
on a sum of Rupees Two Hundred and Sixty Thousand Four Hundred
and Nine (Rs. 260,409) at the rate of Eight per centum (8%) per
annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR)
rounded upwards to the nearest higher 0.5% per annum which will
be revised on the first working day of January, April, July and
October each year published on a Weekly basis by the Central Bank
of Sri Lanka. And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank

under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 and the Development
Finance Corporation of Ceylon Act, No. 35 fo 1955 as subsequently
amended, do hereby resolve that the vehicle described below
mortgaged to the DFCC Bank by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
No. 145 be sold by Public Auction by M/s. Schokman &
Samarawickreme, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery
of the sum of Rupees Two Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand and
cents Three (Rs. 283,000.03) together with interest thereon from 1st
September, 2008 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Two Hundred
and Sixty Thousand Four Hundred and Nine (Rs. 260,409) at the rate
of Eight per centum (8%) per annum above the Average Weighted
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest higher
0.5% per annum which will be revised on the first working day of
January, April, July and October each year published on a weekly
basis by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka or any portion thereof
remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with the costs of
advertising and selling the said Vehicle and all moneys expended and
costs and charges incurred by the DFCC Bank in accordance with the
covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond in terms of Section 13 of
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of
1990.

MOTOR VEHICLE MORTGAGED BY MORTGAGE BOND
NO. 145

Distinctive Description Chassis Engine
Number Make, Model, Number Number

Horse power
etc.

250-3575 Make-Nissan VUGJ NC. 22 LD20-843389
Model - VUGJ 014553
NC. 22

Together with all accessories and tools appertaining thereto.

A. N. FONSEKA,
Director/General Manager.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5 Galle Road,
Colombo 3

05-434

PEOPLE’S     BANK - GALLE     MAIN    STREET
BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.08.2008.
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Whereas Beach Hotel Comran (Pvt.) Ltd., a Company duly
incorporated under the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 and
bearing Certificate of Incorporation No. N(PVS) 13757 and
having its registered Office at “Somiwasa”, Metarmba, Unawatuna
as obligor has made default in payment due on the Bond No. 1056
dated 02.03.2004 attested by Chandra Lamahewage, Notary
Public of Galle, Bond No. 357 dated 16.06.2005 attested by M.
G. C. Aroshini, Notary Public of Galle and Bond No. 536 dated
16.03.2006 attested by Ajantha Kapugamage, Notary Public of
Galle and by which Lanka Geeganage Nimal of “Somiwasa”,
Matarmba, Unawatuna as mortgager mortgage the property
morefully described in the schedule hereto and to the said
Mortgage Bond bearing Nos. 1056, 357 & 536 in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Three Million Three Hundred Sixty-four
Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety -four and cents Eighty-three
(3,364,694.83), One Million Nine Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand
and Nine Hundred Ninety-nine & cents Ninety-six (Rs.
1,999,999.96) & Two Million Two Hundred Ninety-one and Six
Hundred Sixty-six & cents Seventy (Rs. 2,291,666.70) on the
said Bonds, The Board of Directors  of the People’s Bank under
the powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of
1961 as amednded by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises mortgaged to the said bank by the
said Bond No. 1056, 357 &  536 be sold by Public Auction by
G. P. Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum
of Rupess Three Million Three Hundred Sixty-four Thousand
Six Hundred and Ninety-four and cents Eighty-three
(3,364,694.83), One Million Nine Hundred and Ninety-nine
Thousand and Nine Hundred Ninety-nine & cents Ninety-six
(1,999,999.96) and Two Million Two Hundred Ninety-one and
Six Hundred Sixty-six and cents Seventy (Rs. 2,291,666.70) with
further interest on Rupees Three Million Three Hundred Sixty-
four Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-four and cents Eighty-
three (Rs. 3,364,694.83) at 16.75% per centum per annum from
12.02.2008. One Million Nine Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand
and Nine Hundred Ninety-nine and cents Ninety-six
(Rs. 1,999,999.96) at 17.25% per centum per annum from
12.02.2008 and Two Million Two Hundred Ninety-one and Six
Hundred Sixty-six and cents Seventy (Rs. 2,291,666.70) at
20.5% per centum per annum from 12.02.2008, to date of sale and
costs and moneys recoverable under section ‘29L’ of the said
People’s Bank act less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 6 of the
land called Gurukanda Boda Watta alias Mawathabodawatta alias
Mawatha Adderawatta alias Mawatha Gedera bearing Assmt.
No. 377 Matara Road, depicted in Plan No. 4000 dated 25.10.2003
made by W. G. D. U. Karunarathna, Licensed Surveyor, together
with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing
thereon and situated at Unawatuna in the Talpe Pattu in the District
of Galle, Southern Province and which said Lot 6 is bounded on the
North by Gurukandabodawatta alias Mawathabodawatta & Excluded
Lot 2 and on the East by Talagahawatta and on the South by Lot 7
of the same land and on the West by High Road from Galle to Matara
& Lot 5 of the same land and containing in extent One Rood and
Twenty-one decimal two perches (0A. 1R. 21.2P.) according to the

said Plan No. 4000 and Registered under D 900/44 at Galle District
Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

05-385

PEOPLE’S   BANK—JA-ELA   BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank, under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2009.

Whereas Bopage Chandika Shiroman Wijerathne and Bopage
Shanthi Wijerathne have made default in payment due on the
Bond No. 13037 dated 26.11.2007 attested by S. P. L.
Wijesiriwardena, Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Five Million Eight Hundred and Seventy
Six Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty and Cents Forty seven
(Rs. 5,876,730.47) on the said Bond. The Board of Directors of
the People’s Bank under the powers vested in them by the
People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the prpoperty and
premises mortgaged to the said bank by the said Bond No. 13037
be sold by Public Auction by Schokman and Samarawicrema,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Five Million Eight Hundred and Seventy Six Thousand
Seven Hundred and Thirty and Cents Forty-seven
(Rs. 5,876,730.47) and with further interest of Rupees Five
Million Eight Hundred and Seventy-six Thousand Seven Hundred
and Thirty and Cents Forty Seven (Rs. 5,876,730.47) at 23% per
annum from 01.07.2008, to date of sale and costs of sale and
moneys recoverable under Section ’29L’ of the said Peoples’
Bank Act Less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 06
depicted in Plan No. 4068B dated 05.06.2006 made by M. D.
Edward, L. S. of the land called Thimbirigahawatta and
Thimbirigahawatta situated at Batagama North within the Pradeshiya
Sabha limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the
District of Gampaha, Western Province and bounded on the North
by Lot 05 East by part of the same land (reservation for bank) South
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by Lot 07 West by Lot 12 (reservation for road) and containing in
extent Ten Perches (0A. 0R. 10P.) together with the soil, trees,
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon and
registered under B 611/208 at the Land Registry of Gampaha.

Together with right of way in over and along (road reservation)
depicted in the said plan.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

05-398

NATIONAL   DEVELOPMENT   BANK   PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the
National Development Bank PLC at a meeting held on

26th November, 2008

WHEREAS Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Mala Samarakone and
Samarakone Mudiyanselage Sarath Chandra Samarakone of Kandy
(Borrowers) have made default in the payment due on Mortgage
Bond No. 310 dated 07.06.2006 attested by (Ms) G. G. Karaliyadde
of Kandy, Notary Public and Deed of Assignment No. 4969 dated
31.08.2006 attested by (Ms.) N. A. S. Illangakoon of Colombo
Notary Public in favour of National Development Bank PLC
(Formerly National Development Bank, Limited. (Bank)

And whereas a sum of Eight Hundred and Thirteen Thousand
Fifty-seven Rupees (Rs. 813,057) had become due and owing on
the said Bonds to the Bank as at 31st October, 2008.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the powers
vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 (Principal Act) as amended by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) (Amendment)
Act, No. 24 of 1995 do hereby Resolve that the property and
premises described below mortgaged to the Bank by the said
Bonds be sold by public auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya,
Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of the said sum of Eight
Hundred and Thirteen Thousand Fifty-seven Rupees
(Rs. 813,057) or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time
of sale and interest on the aggregate principal sum of Eight
Hundred and Nine Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy-one
Rupees (Rs. 809,471) due on the said Bond at the rate of Thirteen
decimal Five percent (13.5%) per annum from 1st day of
November, 2008 to the date of sale together with the cost of
advertising selling and other charges incurred in terms of Section
4 of the Principal Act less any payments (if any) since received”.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as Lot 1 in
Plan No. 2818 dated 21st March, 1989 made by D. J. Jayagoda,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Thekka Watta situated at
Tennakumbura Gandahaya Korale of Patha Hewaheta in the District
of Kandy, Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the
North-east by Lot No. 5 in the same Plan No. 2818, South-east by
Lot 2 in the same Plan No. 2818, South-west by wire fence separating
Lots 20, 21 and 22 in Plan No. 3474 made by S. C. K. R. Misso,
Licensed Surveyor, North-west by Lot No. 42 in Plan No. 3474 made
by S. C. K. R. Misso Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent
Twenty-six decimal Eight perches (0A.,0R.,26.8P.) together with
the soil plantations well and everything standing thereon and
Registered in the Volume/Folio G 392/148 in the Kandy Land
Registry. Together with the right of way described in the third
schedule to the said Mortgage Bond No. 310.

Director/Chief Executive Officer,
National Development Bank PLC.

05-355

PAN     ASIA    BANK

AMENDMENT to the Notices of Resolution and Notices of sale
Published on the following dates as per the Act, No. 4 of 1990
pertaining to following lands. Please note that the said notices are
amended by substuting the name of the auctioneer Mr. R. S.
Mahanama of R. S. M. Auctions, Mahaname Drive, No. 474,
Pitakotte, Kotte by the name of the auctioneer S. Manamperi of
M. S. Auction, No. 9, Belment Street, Colombo 12.

Notice of Notice Property and Customer
Resolution of Sale
Published Published

30.04.2009 15.05.2009 Lot 5 in Plan No. 7194 made by
K. K. Kumarasamy, L. S. of the land
called  Dodangashinna etc. situated
at Galhinna, Kandy District.
Customer - A. G. H. M. Uvais and

M. C. Z. Mohamed
Customer - A. G. H. M. Uvais

30.04.2009 15.05.2009 Lots 3 and 7 of the land called
Millagahawatta bearing Assessment
No. 165, Old Kandy Road, situated
at Dalugama, Gampaha District.
Customer - U. D. T. Earnest

30.04.2009 07.05.2009 Lot 2 in Plan No. 2946 made by I. A.
C. Senaratna, L. S. of the land called
Delgahawatta etc, situated at Pagoda,
Colombo District.
Customer - Ceylon Business

Elevation (Pvt) Ltd.
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30.04.2009 15.05.2009 Lot 53B in Plan No. 107 made by
V. C. Pemananda, LS situated in
Bandiyanlanmukulama Village,
Anuradhapura District.
Customer - K. H. S. Nishantha and
D. W. H. Weerakkodi

07.05.2009 15.05.2009 Lot 1 in Plan No. 1084 made by U. K.
G. P. S. Pushpakumara, LS of the
land called Kurundugahakumbura etc.
sittuated at Wattala, Gampaha
District.
Customer - Ceylinco Seylan Housing
and Commercial Properties Ltd.

By order of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC.

RANJIT PERERA,
Senior Manager-Recoveries.

05-456/1

Notice of Notice Property and Customer
Resolution of Sale
Published Published

PAN     ASIA    BANK

AMENDMENT to the Notices of Resolution Published on the
following dates as per the Act, No. 4 of 1990 pertaining to following
lands. Please note that the said notices are amended by substituting

the name of the auctioneer Mr. R. S. Mahaname of R. S. M. Auctions,
Mahaname Drive, No. 474, Pitakotte, Kotte by the name of the
auctioneer S. Manamperi of  M. S. Auction, No. 9, Belment Street,
Colombo 12.

Notice of Property and Customer
Resolution
Published

15.05.2009 Lot A in Plan No. 4704 made by
S. Sinnathamby, LS bearing
Assessment No. 94, Vivekananda
Hill situated at Jinthupitiya, Colombo
District.
Customer-S. Nadarajalingam the Sole
Proprietor of Indi Pharmacy and
Grocery.

15.05.2009 Lots 114 in Plan No. 2265 made by
V. A. L. Senaratna, LS of the land
called Millaghawatta etc. bearing
Assessment No. 27/58 situated at
Kalapaluwawa, Colombo District.

15.05.2009 Lot 1A in Plan No. 1413 made by
J. R. Alahakoon, LS of the land called
Anoma and premises bearing
Assessment No. 288A, Galle Road
situated at Kollupitiya, Colombo
District.
Customer-Mod Tec Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

By order of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking
Corporation PLC.

RANJIT PERERA,
Senior Manager-Recoveries.

05-456/2
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